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JJB Sports plc

Chairman’s statement

Since Chns Ronnie joned the Board in June 2007, he has introduced a number of measures to re-energise our retail store
chan The profitability of the retail store cham, which is the maior part of our business, has steadily declined over the last few
years and in the Business review on pages 4 1o 8, we set out what we have achieved to date and what our future policies
will be in this regard

The strengthening of our own brand product offer together with the recent closure of under-pesforming stores, the planned
improvements to our retall store layouts and an incentvisation of our retall staff will, | believe, lsad to a turn-around m the
results of our retail store chain

Uriike the trend 1n results from the retaill store chan, the expansion rate and the results of our chain of fitness clubs 1s very
satsfactory and | believe that there are many opportunities for the continuing growth of this business

At the end of January 2008, we acqurred the Onginal Shoa Company chain of retail stores which specialises in branded
Ifestyls clothing and footwear products The Onginal Shoe Compary fascia will continue and will extend our Group presence
beyond JJB's existing “Serious about sport”™ concept

Changes in Directors

The last 11 months have séen a change in the ownership of the Whelan family block of shares in the Company and several
changes to the Board In June 2007, the founder and pancipal architect of the growth of JJB over the last 30 years, Dawd
Whelan, sold the block of ardinary shares In JJB owned by himself and his farmity, to the joint venture vehicle controlled equally
by Chnis Ronnie and the Icelandic financial group, Exista hf Although David Whelan resigned from the Board in June 2007,
he was appointed Honorary Lifa President 1o reflect the valuable contnbution he has made to JJB since he acquired the
Cormpany In the 1970s, when it traded from only ona retal sports store Many members of the Board had known Chrs
Ronrie for a number of years through his exiensive expenence in the sports trade doth on the sourcing/manufactunng side
(Draclora and Umbro) and on the retal side {Sports Dmsion, that JJB acquired in 1998, and more recentty, Sports Direct)
Chris was appointed as Deputy Chief Executive n June 2007 and when Tom Kmight left the Board in August 2007, Chns was
appointed as Chief Executive

Two Non-executive Directors resigned dunng the last 11 months, Roger Best who left in order 10 spend more time on his other
business nterests at Radley and Andrew Thomas who has been a Non-executive Director since JUB floated in 1994 Alan
Benze has replaced Andrew Thomas as Chairman of the Audit Commitiee, Alan was formerty Charrman of KPMG n the north
of England In October, we were pleased to announce the appointment of Dawid Jones as a Non-executive Director Dawvid was
formerty Chief Executve and later Executive Chatrman of Next and later held Non-Executive positions at wrm Momsons
Supenmarkets and therefore brngs a wealth of relevant retailing skills to the Board In addition to his duties as a Non-executve
Drrector, Dawid 1s also acting as a consultant to adwsea on the growth of our ntermet business and our passible move Into mail
order

In November 2007, we welcomed Dawvid Madeley to the Board as Commercial Birector He has initially led our negotiations
on the sale of most of our indoor soccer centres n February 2008 and the acquisition of the Onginal Shoe Company chain
of retal stores n January 2008 In April 2008, we announced the resignation of cur Finance Director, David Greenwood, who
reaches his normat retirement age in August 2008 Dawd Madeley was then apponted Finance Director

Employees
Chns Ronnie has led the re-energisation of the retail store chain since he joined the Company and the work camed out to
date has necessiated major sfforts by alf levels of staff and this work has been camed out enthusiastcally and to a high

standard | would like to take this opportunity 1o thank all our staff for ther support and therr work contrbution dunng this
past ysar

Outlook

There 1s no doubt that the whote retad market within the UK 1s currently facing challenging times with the reduced availability
of cradit together with Increasing nterest charges and mflationary costs affecting the disposable incomes of the majonty of
our customers Whilst we cannot expect to ba exempt from the impact that these condtions will have upon our trade in the
near future | do belleve that the actions we have taken to re-energise our retail store chan are entwely appropnrate

The acquisiion of new own brands should result in both a stranger product offenng n our stores and an upldt in our gross
margn and the recent closure of our under-performing stores will mprove the Group result We are excited by the
opportunities presented by the Onginal Shoe Company store chain and of course, we lock to continped expansion from our
chan of fitness clubs

Therefore although the tmes ahead will be challenging, | believe that we are now approaching a turning point for the Group
which will see an improvement in our performance over the medium term

R Lane-Smith

i L(/\'J\\“
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JJB Sports plc

Business review
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Cautionary statement

The Business review has been prepared solely to provide additional information to shareholders to assess the Group's
strategies and the potential for those strategies to succeed The Business review should not be relied on by any other party
or for any other purpose

The Business review and the Chairman's statement contain certain forward-looking statements These statements are macde
by the Directors in good fath based on the information available to them up to the time of their approval of this Annual report
and such statements should be treated with caution due to the mherent uncertainties, including both economic and business
nsk factors, underlytng any such forward-locking informabon

Review of operating results

The operating results for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 and the comparative figures for the 52 weeks to 28 January 2007
are summansed below We have decided upon an early adoption of IFRS 8 Operating Segrments  Accordingty, our segmental
information 15 now based upon the two business segments about which we apprasse separate financial information when
deaiding how to allocate resources and to assess performance These two segments comprise (a) all our retal operations
and (b) our fitness clubs The segments that we previously used were {a) standalone retail operations and (b) the combined
units which included both the fitness clubs and the retal stores situated above them We believe that this new segmentation
gives a more meaningful nsight inte our two operating dwisions

52 weeks to 27 January 2008 52 weeks to 28 January 2007
Retail Fitness Retail Fitness
operatons clubs Total  operations clubs Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £°000
Revenug 745,474 66,280 811,754 754,488 55,799 810,287
Gross profit 342,403 63,709 406,112 331,432 53,541 384,973
Location net cperating expenses
before exceptional operating tems {292,968) {46,597) (339,565} (271,157) (38 765) (309,922)
Operating profit before central costs
and exceptional operating tems 49,435 17,112 66,547 60,275 14,776 75,051
Central administration costs (32,278) (27,307)
Operating profit before exceptional
operating tems 34,269 47,744
Exceptional operating tems {22,974) {8,723)
Operating profit 11,295 39,021

Retail operations

Revenue from reta) operations for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 fell by £9 0 millon (1 2 per cent) compared to the
previous accounting penod and which included a like-for-like decrease, on stores which have been in operation for over 52
weeks, of 0 5 per cent Al product categones, with the exception of replica kit products, achieved similar or hegher levels of
revenue but the strong comparatives in replica kit revenue from the FIFA World Cup n the summer of 2006 could not be
matched in the summer of 2007, over the whole 52 weeks, revenua from England related products fell by £23 4 million

The gross margin achieved on the retall operations for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 was 45 9 per cent compared to
43 g per cent in the corresponding penod This mprovement reflects higher margins from our ranges of footwear and replica
products The gross margin would have been shightly higher had it not been for the extensve stock clearance prograrmme
that we camed out dunng January 2008 which resulted m the Group having a more current stock posmon by 27 January
2008

Location net operating expenses before exceptional operating items increased by 8 0 per cent to £283 0 million, manly as
a result of increased payroll costs and inflationary increases n power and fuel costs

As a resuft of the above, operating profit from the retall operations, before central costs and exceptional operating tems, was
£49 4 milion, compared to £60 3 million last year

» JUB Sports » Retall stores * Fitness clubs ¢ Serious about sport ¢ JJUB Sports * Retail stores ® Fitness clubs
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JJUB Sports plc

Business review (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Review of operating results {continued)

Fitness clubs

Revenue from the fitness clubs mcreased by 18 B per cent 1o £66 3 millkon as we conttnued our expansion of this Dsion, this
included a ike-for-ike increase of 3 7 per cent, we operated from 39 clubs at 28 January 2007 and from 49 clubs at
27 January 2008 The gross margin continues at a very high level and for the accounting penod Just ended, was 96 1 per cent

Location operating expenses before excephional operating tems increased by 20 2 per cent to £46 6 milhon resulhing in an
operating profit before central administration costs and exceptional operating tems of £17 1 milllon, a 15 & per cent increase
compared to the previous accounting penod

Exceptional operating items

Exceptional operating items for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 totalled £23 0 milion and included a provision m respect
of the restructuring of our retall store chan of £25 0 million relating to the store closure costs of 72 stores which we closed
in Aprl 2008 Included in that store number are 7 which we are to re-badge as “Onginal Shoe Company” stores This
compares to exceptional operating tems in the previous accounting penod of £8 7 mllion, including £4 1 mullion relating to
the final costs of the action taken aganst us by the Office of Farr Trading and a provision of £3 3 million following the closure
of our Icon chain of stores

Net profit before taxahon

The net profit before taxation and excepbonal operating tems decreased by 28 5 per cent to £33 8 millon from £47 2 mullion
and the net profit before taxation after deciucting those exceptional operating tems decreased by 71 9 per cent to £108
milion from £38 5 million

Taxation

The effective rate of taxation on the Group's profit before taxation 1s 10 8 per cent compared to 32 9 per cent In the previous
accounting penod This decrease results from the calculation of deferred tax liablities at the new corporation tax rate of
280 per cent which became effectve on 1 Apnl 2008 If the deferred tax habiity had been calculated at the former
corporation tax rate of 30 0 per cent, then the effective rate of tax would have been 30 1 per cent

The effective rate of 32 9 per cent N the previous accounting penod was higher than the then current corporation tax rate
because of the increase N provisions relating to the legal penalty and interest thereon which were regarded as being
disallowable for tax purposes

Earmings per share

Basic earmings per ordinary share for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 are 4 07 pence compared to 11 07 pence in the
previous accountng penod This reduction 15 due to lower pre exceptional operating profits and the deduction of the
exceptional operating tems totalling £23 0 mulion (2007 £8 7 millon) as shown In the Consolidated income statement on
page 37 of the Financial staternents The adjusted basic earmings per ordinary share (before deduction of excephona operating
ftems) for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 are 10 89 pence compared to 14 21 pence i the previous accounting penod

Operational review
Retail operations

At the tme of publication of our Intenm results in September 2007, we set out our plans for the re-energisation of our retail
stores whilst mantaining our focus upon being “Senous about sport™ Dunng the second half of the accounting penod of 52
weeks to 27 January 2008, we have commenced a number of mitiatives which have started this re-energisaton

. We have undertaken an extensive clearance programme of non-current stock throughout January 2008 and
whilst this has impacted our gross margins, it has left our stock package in a much cleaner pesiion than at
earlier penod ends

. We are committed to ncreasing the proportion of our retal store revenue from our own brand products and
have recently completed an agreement to llcense the UK distribution nghts of the Champion brand Since
the year end, we have also purchased the Travel Fox brand We have doubled the number of staff in our
design/sourcing department over the last few months @ order to take advantage of the product
opportunities presented by these new brands We will continue to seek to acquire nghts to other brands and
believe that this will lead 1o enhanced levels of both revenue and gross margin We also beteve that these
inhiatves will reduce aur dependency on the major bi-annual nternational football tournaments

+ JJB Sports ¢ Retail stores ¢ Fitness clubs ¢ Serious about sport » JJB Sports ¢ Retail stores ¢ Fitness club
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JJB Sports plc

Business review (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Operational review (continued)
Retal operations (continued)

[ In Novemnber 2007, we refitted our existing store at The Trafford Centre in Manchester incorporating many
new features and layouts, mcluding a mezzanne floor The trading results from this store since the re-
opening have been very encouraging wiih double digit increases in revenus We intend to refit up 1o 40
stores dunng the current year n both our out-of-town superstare and high street superstore formats

[ On 16 Apnl 2008, we announced the results of a major review of our existing store portfolio Prior to the year
end, we started to implement a plan to close 72 stores which we believe will not make any significant
contnbution to Group profits In the near future Seven of these stores are to ba re-badged as “Onginal Shoe
Company” Many of these stores compete aganst other newer and larger stores that we trade from in
nearby locations All these stores closed in Apnl 2008 Prowisions amounting to £25 0 mifion have been
created in respect of these closures, which cluda the impaiment of tems withun property, plant and
equ:pment which will no longer be of use, tenancy costs expected to be incurred In exiting the relevant lease
agreements and tha attendant redundancy costs We believe that these closures will leave us with a more
profitable store portfolio that will be able to taka full advantage of the other elements of our re-energisation
ptans which we set out in this section

. Wa have made a number of changes 1o the operation of our Distnbution centre In order 10 mprove the level
of service given to retall stores The frequency of delivenies to stores has been considerably improved and
the Distnbution cantre 1s now working a seven-day week We have also begun to pre-retail all products going
1o our best performing storas

. Two mitalives which have already been fully implemented are those refating to the introduction of a significant
retall store staff incentvisation scheme and the opening of a Training acaderny at Martland Park in Wigan In
September 2007, we opened the Training academy with a team of 10 dedicated trainers whao are carmying out
traning programmes for all retall staff We are focused on daving revenus through traning and behieve that this
will mprove customers” expenences within our stores and further differentiate us from our competitors

. On 28th January 2008 we acquired the whole of the share capital of the Onginal Shoe Company Limaed
{("OSC™ for a cash consideration of £5 millon, which was paid at the end of March 2008 OSC carries a
range of branded Ifestyle clothing and footwear products which have never been available within JJB There
are currently 60 OSC stores based predominately on the high street in the north of England and in Scotland
This fascia will be maintained and we also plan to convert some of our smaller high strest stores into OSC
stores OSC will be run as a separate dvision of JJB, although it will share JJB’s financing and marketing
furctions which will minimise any increase in central costs The acquisition of OSC allows us 10 access new
customers and to compete more effectively with other retallers in the branded Ifestyle part of the retal sports
trade without diluting our JJB strategy of being “Senous about sport”

Fitness clubs

Dunng the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 we opened 9 combined fitness clubs/superstores and acquired one stand-alona
fitness club from Fitness first The total number of fitness clubs in operation at the end of the accounting penod was 49 and
these sites inctuded 6 ndoor soccer centres

For some tme now, we have not considered the growth of our Indoor soccer centres as being a sirategic part of our future
developmenit and consequently sold 5 of these centres o a subsidiary of Powerleague Group ple in February 2008 for a cash
consideration of £17 4 mulkon

Membership levels at the fitness clubs continue to be very satisfactory There was a total of 205,800 members at the 49
fitness clubs at 27 January 2008, compased to 174,700 members at 28 January 2007 from the 39 fitness clubs in operation
at that date This represents a total mcrease of 17 8 per cent and includes a hike-for-like increase of 3 4 per cent In the number
of members n the 39 fitness clubs that have been open throughout the accounting penod Our success In achieving the fugh
levals of memberstup in our clubs results from the strong value-for-money offenng of first-class facliies at very competitive
subscrption rates

The continuing success of the concept of combined umits fully justifies the Board’s decision to mantan the opening
programme, referred to n the Property review on page 9 of this Annual report

» JUB Sports * Retail stores * Fitness clubs * Serious about sport ¢ JUB Sports » Retail stores ® Fitness clubs
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JJB Sports plc

Business review (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Review of Balance Sheet

Capital expenditure

Capttal expenditure on property, ptant and equpment for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 was £27 3 millon compared to
£33 1 milion in the previous accounting penod The majonty of this caprtal expenditure was spent on the combined fitness
club/superstore sites A total of 9 combined fitness clubs/superstores were opened dunng the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008
compared to 7 in the previous accounting pened, although much of the capital expenditure on 3 clubs which opened in the
early moniths of the accounting penod to 27 January 2008 was included in the caprtal expenditure for the previous accounting
penod

Current asset investment

In October 2007, we acquired a strategic interest 1n Umbro plc (“Umbro™) for £26 5 million, equivatent to 10 12 per cent of
its 1ssued share caprtal, at a pnce {including costs) of 179 6 pence per share

Trus shareholding has been valued in the Consoldated balance sheet at 27 January 2008 at 190 3 pence being the market
pnce of Umbro's shares on that day and the gain on the revaluation of £1 6 milion has been taken to equity These shares,
pursuant to a Scheme of Arrangement, were acquired by Nike Vapour Ltd for 193 06 pence per share in March 2008 gving
agan in the current accounting penod of £434,000

Inventones
The value of Inventories at 27 January 2008 was £115 0 milion, 10 2 per cent lower than at 28 January 2007, partly as a

result of the extensive clearance programme of non-current stock in January 2008 and partly from lower levels of England
replica stock because of a later launch of the new kit in 2008

Net debt

The Group’s net debt at 27 January 2008 was £42 2 mllion compared to £9 2 millon at 28 January 2007 The pnncipal
reason for the increase In net debt 15 the acquistion of the shares in Umbro Plc at a cost of £26 5 milion which, as referred
to above, have subsequently been sold to Nike Vapour Ltd in March 2008

Financial review
Dmwidend

The Board has proposed, subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, to mantain
the rate of the final dwmdend at 7 0 pence net per ordinary share If approved, the final dividend will be paid on 8 August 2008
to shareholders on the share register at the close of business on 11 July 2008 and the shares will trade ex-dmdend from
9 July 2008

The total of the intenm dnidend of 3 pence per ordinary share for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008, pad on 9 January 2008,
together with the proposed final dwdend, 1s coverad 0 4 times calculated upon basic earnings per ordinary share but 15
covered 1 1 times calculated on the adjusted basic earnings per ordinary share The dividend yield, based on the mid market
prce of an ordnary share of 112 5 pence at 25 January 2008, will be 8 9 per cent if the proposed final dwdand 1s approved

Share caprtal

Details of the share capital and recent movements are described in note 27 In the Notes to the Financial statements

The rmid market share pnce of the ordinary shares at the close of business on 25 January 2008 was 112 50 pence,
representing an equity market capitalisation of approximately £269 mithon This share price represents a decrease of 54 7 per
cent from the pnce of 248 50 pence at 26 January 2007 Following the announcement of the Preliminary results on 16 Apnl
2008, the closing share pnce was 117 25 pence On 20 May 2008, the date on which declarable interests have been
disclosed in the Directors’ report, the share pnce was 124 25 pence

« JUB Sports « Retail stores ¢ Fitness clubs ¢ Serious about sport  JJB Sports ® Retail stores * Fitness club
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JJUB Sports plc

Business review (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Current trading

On 20 May 2008, we published our Intenm Management Statemnent relating to the 13 weeks to 27 Apnl 2008 We adwised
that Group revenue for that penod was 8 3 per cent lower than the same penod last year On a iike-for-like basts (on operating
units that have been trading for over 52 weeks) the total revenue was 5 3 per cent lower This compnses a 6 5 per cent
decrease in retasl store chain revenus and a 5 0 per cent iIncrease in revenue from fitness clubs The combined gross margin
achieved dunng the same penocd was 100 basis points higher than the comparative penod last year

Wa noted that the Board remamns confident about its strategy going forward but 1s also aware of the chaflenging reta
snvirongient We also confirmed the completion of our racent store closure programme

D P Madeley
Chief Executive Finance Director
23 May 2008 23 May 2008




JJB Sports plc

Property review
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Dunng the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008, we opened 14 new retall stores and reopened 5 stores, dunng the same penod
we closed 26 retail stores The 14 openings compnsed 8 stores skuated above fitness cubs and 6 standalone superstores
The 26 closures included 7 retal stores which closed as a result of relocations to newty opened nearby sites, with most of
the other stores beng closed because of ther poor trading performance

The number of oparating units 1s as foliows

As at As at
27 January 28 January
2008 2007

Retall Stores %
Out-of-town superstores 192 191
High street superstores 102 107
COthers - manly small high street stores 115 118
409 416
Retail seling space (square feet) 4,348,000 4,295,000
Fitness clubs 49 39

Qur opening plans for the current accountng penod compnse 10 combined fitness club/superstores and 9 other
superstores The stes of these openings are In vanous stages of legal negotiation or actuat construction Siies identified for
opening dunng the next accounting penod compnse 14 combined fitness clubs/superstores and 4 other superstores

Wa have already referred in the Retal operations part of the Operational revew on an earlier page, to the closure in Apnl 2008
of a number of stores as a result of a review of our existing store portfolio and also to our plans for store refits

Our am 15 to concentrate our JJB stores into both high street superstores and out-of-town superstores where a more
complete range of clothing, fostwear and equipment can be displayed This also provides customers with a more pleasant
shopping expenence and we expect this policy to maximise store profitabiity In order 1o mitigate the impact of 5 year rent
reviews on out-of-town sites which regularly exceed the rate of inflation, we shalt continue the roll out the combined fitness
club/superstores format where, by negotiation with the landlord, a cap 15 placed on all future rent reviews

J K

Property Director
23 May 2008

« JUB Sports * Retall stores » Fitness clubs # Serious about sport * JUB Sports ¢ Retail stores ® Fitness cluk
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JJUB Sports plc

Directors’ biographies

Executive Directors

Chns Ronnie — Chief Executive

Aged 46, Chns Ronnie was part of the consortium which in June 2007 acquired the share block held by
Dawvid Whelan and his famity Chns joned the Board as Deputy Chief Executive on 8 June 2007 and
succeeded Tom Knight as Chief Executive on 3 August 2007 Chnis brings to JJB a wealth of expenence
from his many years In the sports industry sector including both manufactunng and retal areas He
prewiously worked for Blane Leisure Limited (Sports Dnasion), a major competitor of JUB pnior to JJUB's
acquisition of that company in September 1998 He has since held senior posthions in several other
sports companies Including Umbro ple and Spaorts Direct Internaticnal plc

Barry Dunn MRICS - Property Director

Aged 51, Barry Dunn joined JJB in 1986 as Estatas Manager after 10 years iIn commercial and residential
agency In 1992 he left to take up the position of Estates and Development Controller with Matalan ple,
where he ganed valuable expenence in the development of out-of-town retaling Returning to JJUB in
19895 as Property Directar, Barry Dunn has full responsibility for the Group's existing properties and for
identifying and negotiating the acquisition of new sites and the disposal of the leases of any closed
operating units

David Madeley FCA - Finance Director

Aged 47, David Madeley joined JJB on 26 November 2007 as Commercial Birector Dawd Madeley
quatified as a Chartered Accountant in 1983, and brings a wealth of expenence from his time n both the
corporate finance and marketing communications sectors In hus posiion of Commercial Director, he had
particutar responsibiity for all major contractual agreements and corporate acquisitions and disposals
Cn 1 May 2008, Dawd was apponted Finance Director and added the overall responsibilty for all
accounting and administrative functions to his responsibilities

Non-executive Directors

Roger Lane-Smith - Chaiman

Roger Lane-Smith, aged 62, was appointed as a Non-executive Oirector in Novernber 1998 He was
Senior Partner and Charrman of DLA Piper UK LLP from 1998 to 2005 and was appointed a Senior
Consuttant {0 the practice in May 2005 In July 2005, he became Chairman of JJB, responsible both for
ensunng that the Board functions effectively and also for general strategic 1ssues He 1s a Non-executive
Director of MS International plc, WH Ireland Group plc, Dolphin Capital Investors ple, Timpsons ple and
a number of other non-quoted companies

» JUB Sports ¢ Retail stores e Fitness clubs » Serious about sport » JJB Sports ¢ Retall stores » Fitness clubs
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JJB Sports plc

Directors’ biographies (continued)

Non-executive Directors {continued)

David Beever

Dawd Beever, aged 67, was appointed as a Non-executve Director in March 2000 He 15 a Non-
executive Director of Prermier Foods pic, The Paragon Group of Companies ple and Volex Group plc He
was previousty Charrnan of London & Continental Ratways Limited and a Vice Charman of SG Warburg
& Co Limited

Alan Benzie FCA

Alan Benzie, aged 60, was appointed as a Non-executive Director on 3 August 2007 Alan was Charrman
of KPMG in the north of England until his retirement in 2003 and 1s now Chairman of the North West legal
firm, DWF Alan also holds Non-executive directorships at London Scottish Bank ple, Grampan Country
Food Group Ltd, Ask Deveiopments Ltd and 15 Charman of the Board of Governors of Manchester
Metropolitan University

David Jones CBE, FCCA, FCIS

David Jones, aged 65, was appointed as a Non-executrve Director on 1 October 2007 Dawvid Jones has
had a long career i the retail Industry, notably as Chief Executive and later Executive Chairman of Next
plc He was also a Non-executve Director and later Non-executive Deputy Chairman of Wm Mormson
Supermarkets plc and 1s currently Chairman of Litlewoods Shop Direct Group

Board Committees

Audit Committee

Alan Benzie (appointed 3 August 2007
and appointed Chairman 1 January 2008)

Andrew Thomas (Committee Chairrnan,
resigned 1 January 2008)

Dawvid Beever
Roger Best {resigned 3 August 2007)
Dawd Jones (appointed 1 October 2007)

Remuneration Committee
Roger Lane-Smith (Committee Chairman)

Andrew Thomas (resigned 1 January
2008)

Dawvid Beever

Roger Best {resigned 3 August 2007)
Alan Benzie (appointed 3 August 2007)
David Jones {appointed 1 October 2007)

Nommations Committee
Roger Lane-Smith {Committee Chairman)

Andrew Thomas (resigned 1 January
2008)

Dawd Beever

Roger Best {resigned 3 August 2007)
Alan Benzie {appointed 3 August 2007)
Dawid Jones (appointed 1 October 2007)

The terms of reference and detalls of the responsibiities of these Committees 1s set out in the Corporate govemnance report on pages 21 1o
22 and 15 published on JJB's corporate website — www jbcorporate co uk

e JUB Sports * Retall stores * Fitness clubs » Serious about sport  JUB Sports ¢ Retall stores # Fitness cluk
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JJB Sports plc

Directors’ report
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

The Directors of JJB Sports plc {the Group) present ther Annual report on the affars of the Group, together with Financial statements and
the Audrtors’ report, for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Enhanced business review

This section should be read In conjunction with the Business review on pages 4 to 8 of this Annual report

The principal actmty of the Group continues 1o be the retating of sportswear and sporting equipment The Group also operates a chain of
fitness clubs which have a smaller number of ndoor soccer centres attached o them The Group also operates a telewision broadcasting and
marketing business which specialises in the marketing of golf products and fitness equipment through Sky Television On 28 January 2008,
the Group acqured Onginal Shoa Company, which trades from 60 stores, and sells a range of branded Iifestyle clothing and footwear In
February 2008, the Group sold the majonty of is indoor soccer centres

At 27 January 2008 the Group operated frorm 400 retad stores, 49 fiiness clubs and 6 ndoor soccer centres

The Group's plans for store openings dunng the financial period of 52 weeks commencing 28 January 2008 are to open a further 10 combined
fitness clubs/superstores and 9 standalone superstores On 16 Apnl 2008 the Group announced that it was to restructure its retayl store chain
by closing 72 under-performing retal stores during April 2008

Except for the acquisition of the Onginal Shoe Company chain and the restructure of the retail store chain referred to above, the Directors are
not aware, at the date of this Annual report, of any other likely major changes to the Group's actwviies in the current financial year

The Group’s financial results for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 are shown in the Consolidated ncome staternent on page 37, the Group’s
revenue increased by 0 2 per cent, over the comparatve accounting penod and the net profit before taxation has fallen by 71 9 per cent to
£10 8 million (after the creation of a provision for the restructunng of the retait store chain, of £25 O milkon) from £38 5 mullion

The Consolidated balance sheet on page 32 shows the Group's financial position at 27 January 2008 Net assets have fallen to £365 1 million
from £377 0 milion, principally as a result of mantaining the dadend despite the fall i profit after taxation The fall n profit after taxation was
principally caused by the creation of the provision of £25 O milhan for the restructunng of the retail store chain

Results and dividends

The Group proft after taxation for the accounting penod aftnbutable to equity holders of the Company 1s £0,630,000 (2007 £25,825,000)
Dmdends paid dunng the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 and deducted from the equity attnbutable to the equity holders of the Company
compnse the final devidend for the previcus accounting penod of 7 O pence net per ordinary share, amounting o £16,556,000 and the Intenm
dmdend for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 of 3 0 pence net per ordinary share amounting to £7,116,000

The Dreclars recommend a final dvdend of 7 0 pence net per ordinary share (2007 7 0 pence) which when added to the intenm dwdend
of 30 pence {2007 3 0 pence) gives a total dwdend paid or proposed for the accounting penod of 10 O pence net per ordinary share {2007
100 pence) If appraved at the forthcoming Annual General Mesting, the final dvidend will be paid on 8 August 2008 to shareholders on the
share regster at the close of business on 11 Juty 2008

Capntal structure

Detalls of the authonsed and issued share capital, together with detalls of the movements in the Company’s issued share capital dunng the
accounting penod are shown in note 27 i the Notes to the Financial statements The Company has one ctass of ordinary shares which carry
no nght to fixed income Each share carries the nght to one vote at general meetings of the Company

There are no speciic restnchions on the size of the holding nor on the transter of shares, which are both governed by the general provisions
of the Articles of Association and prevaiing legistation The Directors are not aware of any agresments between holders of the Company’s
shares that may result in restnctions on the transfer of secunties or on voting nghts

Details of employee share schemes are set out m note 28 in the Notes to the Financial statements
No person has any special nghts of control over the Company's share caprial and all issued shares are fully paid

With regard to the appointment and replacement of Birectors, the Company 15 governed by its Articles of Association, the 2006 Combined
Code on Corporate Governance, the Companies Acts and related legislaon The Articles themselves may be amended by special resolution
of the shareholders

Under s Articles of Association, the Company has authonty to 1ssue 331,600,000 ordinary shares There are currently 238,867,500 ordinary
shares in issue
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JJB Sports plc

Directors’ report (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Risks and uncertainties

The Board has a policy of continuous identfication and review of key business nsks and oversees the development of processes to ensure
that these nsks are managed appropnatety Executive Directors and senior management, ncluding the Assoctate Directors, are delegated with
the task of implementing these processes, the Executive Directors are charged with reporting to the Board on therr outcomes The key risks
identrfied by the Board include

Economic condritions

In cormmon with most retallers, JJB's results can be affected by a nurmber of economic condrtions including nterest rates, the avalability of
consumer credit, the level of inflation and movements in consumers’ disposable ncome Al these factors affect the level of consumer
confidence and can impact upon revenue achieved by both JJB’s retal store chan and s fitness clubs This ts particularly relevant at the
current ime where presant economic conditions are having a particularty adverse effect upon the mcome that consumers' have avalable for
non-essential purchases In order to miigate these economic nsks JUB needs 1o remain competitive through the offer of a wide range of
products at reasonable pnces through a strong property portiolio

Competstion

JJB's retall store chamn operates in a partrcularty competitive part of the retail sector and therefore its degree of competitiveness 1s (o some
extent affected by the retal pnang policies of its competitors which In turn Impacts upon JJB’ margins, profitability and market share In
arder to mitigate this nsk, JJB monitors prices on an ongoing basis and seeks o design and source new products The am s to achieve a
broad appeal by offenng qualtty ranges of products at varying price points JJB 1s also improving its e-commerce capability to 1ake advantage
of other consumer markets

Key personnel

The success of JUB s partly dependent upon the continued service of its key management personnel and upon its ability to attract, motivate
and retain suitably qualfied employees In order to help achieve this continued service, JUB has introduced competitive reward packages for
all head office and retail staff and opened a dedicated Traring academy 1o develop trainng for dl levels of retall staff and thereby increase
morale and improve staff retention It 15 hoped the academy will also achieve Increases in revenue through improved customer service and
product knowledge from 1ts employees

Environment

JJB's key environmental nsks are related to mimimising energy usags in stores and in transportation, the management of waste and its ability
to respond to consumer ¢oncearns In this area JJB recognises the opportunities for competitive advantage through energy efficiency and
toaks for continuous improvements  JJB 1s working closely with the Carbon Trust to achieve these objectives, as noted in the Corporate social
responsibiity report referred to on page 28 of this Annual report

Suppliers

JUB 1s dependant upon its magor suppliers continuing to design and produce quality product ranges for sale within its retail siores at wholesale
prices which will enable JJUB to maintain its margins and to compete effectively within the retail sector It 1s also dependent upon mantaining
relationships with a number of source manufacturers who can provide products sourced directly by JJB under its own brands

IT systems and business continurty

JJB 15 dependent upon the continued availability and integrity of its computer systems Its retal and fitness club operations must record and
process a substantial volume of data and conduct Inventary management accurately and quickly This can only be achieved on systems whuch
benefit from continuous enhancements and ongoing investment which will minmise the nsk of obsolescence and maintain responsiveness to
business needs JJB s also dependant upon the uninterrupted operation of its computer systems and therefore reliance needs to be placed
upon a disaster recovery plan to replicate the data stored on its business cntical cormnputer systems JJB has extensive controls in place to
mantain the integrity and efficiency of its [T infrastruciure
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JJB Sports plc

Directors’ report (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Risks and uncertainties (continued}

Revenue dependence on key sporting events

JJB dernves some benefit in alternate years from the sale of replica kits f the England national football team reaches the finals of the two major
competitions (the FIFA World Cup and the Euro Championships) This benefit 1s lost if the England team fals to qualify for the finals of those
competitions In order to mitigate this situation, JUB s implementing measures 1o reduce the level of dependency on tournarment years by
improving the performance of all product categones in the retall stores with the introduction of products from new own brands

Logistics and distnbution infrastructure

An important component of JJB's strategy 15 to maintan a secure and efficient distnbution centre in order to ensure prompi and frequent
delvenies of nventory 1o its retail stores Any disruption to this supply chain could adversely affect the Group's revenue levels

Property availability

The continuing growth of the Group, particuarty with regard 1o the combined fitness clubs/superstores, 15 dependant upon the avalability of new
sites at compettive rentals, the timing of new openings s partly dependant upon the granting of full planning permssions by local authonties

Treasury and financial nsks

JJB 1s subject to treasury and financial nsks ansing from the secunty of its existing funds, the ongoing avarabiity of new funds and fluctuations
in Interest and exchange rates The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and moniors its funding
requirernents by regular funds forecasting The Board regularly reviews any requirement to protect the Group against fluctuations in interest
rates and In order to protect cash flows aganst the exchange rate nsk, JJB enters into forward contracts to hedge exposures ansing on ds
forecasts of payments in foreign currencies

Key performance indicators

The Board monitors its performance by reference to a numbsr of key performance indicators (*KPIs") of which the most important are

52 weeks to 52 weeks to
27 January 28 January
2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Financial KPls

Change in hke-for-like revenue +02% +7 5%
Gross margin 50 0% 47 5%
Earmings per share 407 pence 11 07 pence
Net debt £42,156,000 £9,246,000

Non-financial KPls
Retail seling space 4,348,000 sq feet 4,295,000 sq feet
Number of fitness clubs 49 39
Number of fitness club members 205,800 174,700

Subsidianes

The subsidiary undertakings pnncipally affecting the profits or net assets of the Group in the accounting pencd are listed in note 16 1n the
Notes to the Financial statements
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JJB Sports plc

Directors’ report (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Directors
The Directors who served dunng the year were

R Lane Smith O Whelan (fesgned 8 June 2007)

TW Knight (resigned 3 August 2007) C Ronnie {apponted 8 June 2007)

J D Greenwood (resigned 30 April 2008) BJK Dunn

D P Madeley (appointed 26 November 2007) DMM Beever

R C Best {resigned 3 August 2007) A AE Benzie (appointed 3 August 2007)
D C Jones {apponted 1 October 2007) AG Thomas (resignad 1 January 2008)

The current members of the Board of Directors are listed on page 12 of this Annual report

Full detads of the cost of the service contracts, remuneration and incentive packages provided for the Directors are given in the Directors’
remunerahon report In this Annual report on pages 30 to 35

Directors’ interests

The interests of the Directors 1 the ordinary shares of the Company at the beginning of the accounting penod. or date of appointment if later
and at the end of the accounting period, were as follows

27 January 2008 28 January 2007
or date of later appointment
Number of 5p ordinary shares Numiber of 5p ordinary shares
Beneficial Non-beneficial Beneficial Non-beneficial
R Lane-Smith 150,000 - 66,674 -
C Ronnie 34,496,474 34,496,474 34,408,474 34,496,474
JD Greenwood 498,531 - 498,531 -
BJ K Dunn - - - -
D P Madeley - - -~ -
DMM Beever 84,751 - 70,200 -
AAE Benze 40,000 - - -
0 C Jones - - - -

The interest in the ordinary shares of the Company held by Chns Ronnie are held in Halico 1480 Limited, a company in which he holds
50 per cent of the 1ssued share capital Whilst all these shares are registered n the name of Kaupthing Singer & Fnediander Uirnited, pending
a default under the relevant facilities agreement financing the purchase of the shares, the voting, conversion, redemption and all the nghts to
such shares are required to be exercised on the nstructions of Hallco 1480 Limited

There have been no changes in Directors’ nterests since 27 January 2008
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JJB Sports plc

Directors’ report {(continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Declarable interests

As at 20 May 2008, the following notrfications had been recewved from holders of matenal interests in 3 per cent or more of the Company's
ssued share capital

Number ot 5p Percentage

ordinary shares of share caprtal

Hallco 1480 Limted {see above) 68,992,848 2888
Legal & General Investment Management 29,559,197 12 37
Hams Associates LP 24,837,725 1031
Standard Life Investments 21,145,550 885
MF Global UK 13,791,452 577
LSV Asset Management 12,120,114 507
Barclays Global Investors 11,467,951 4 80
Investec Asset Management 10,726,879 4 49
Caprtal Group 10,328,228 432
Liontrust Asset Managemant 9,193,301 385
Dimensional Fund Adwisors 8,717,853 365

Close company status

The Company 1s not a ckose company within the provisions of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988

Charitable donations, corporate responsibility and polhcal contnbutions
Chantable donations of £32,700 (2007 £2.000) were made by the Group dunng the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008
In addition to these donations, JJB drectly supported a number of chanties dunng 2007 with fundraising schemes or events including

Macmillan Cancer Relief, Briish Heart Foundation, Breast Cancer Awareness and the Vanety Club Children's Chanty In total £142,000 was
raised for these chanties and detalls are given in the Corporate social responsibility report on pages 26 to 27

No contnbutions were made to politcal parties

Financtal rnsks and treasury policies

The key financial nsks faced by the Group are the secunty of existing funds, the ongoing avalabiity of adequate funding and fluctuations in
exchange and interest rates

The treasury policies approved by the Board of Directors which are used by the Group in order to effectively manage these nsks are set out
in note 38 in the Notes to the Financial staterments

Supplier payment policy

The Group’s policy for the paymant of suppliers i1s 10 agree terms of payment with suppliers at the tme that orders are placed Payment i1s
then made in accordance with the agreed terms At 27 January 2008, the number of days purchases included in the amounts owing to trade
creditors, in the Group and Company, was 27 days (2007 26 days), based on the ratic of trade ¢craditors at the end of the accounting penod
to the amounts paid durng the accounting penod to trade creditors

Disclosure of information to Auditors

In accordance with the prowisions of Section 234ZA of the Comparnies Act 1985, each of the persons who 1s a Director at the date of approval
of this Directors’ report confirms that

. so tar as the Director 1s aware, thers 1s no refevant audit information of which the Company'’s Auditors are unaware, ang

. each Director has taken all the steps that he ought fo have taken as a Dwector to make timself aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Company's Audiiors ase aware of that nformation
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JJB Sports plc

Directors’ report (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Employment 1ssues
The Group employs approximately 12,000 people throughout the United Kingdom and overseas and 18 proud of its record as a responsible

and valued employer JUB Sports plc 1s an equal opportunities employer, and as such the following key values are respected throughout JJB's
operations

[ All employees should be treated fairly and equally and the workplace should be free from discnmination, harassment and intimidation,
L] Recrutment, retenion and progression of employees 1s based solely on personal ability and competency for the work in queston, and

. Disabled persons should enjoy equal opportunities within the workplace Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully
considered, beanng in mind the aptitudes of the applicant concerned In the event of members of staff becorming disabled, every effort 1s
mada 1o ensure that their employmeant with the Group continues and that the appropnate traiming s arranged It 1s the policy of the Group
that the training, career development and promation of disabled persons, should as far as possible, be identical to that of other employees

Employee training
Siaff traming and development 1s a major prionty for JUB and in September 2007, JJB opened a Training academy The academy has a team

of 10 dedicated trainers and prowdes training for all fevels of staff at its retanl stores, with a focus on providing customer servica and achieving
product knowledge

In addrion to developing courses for retail store staff, the academy 1s currently developing an Institute of Leadershup Management course for
retail, head office and distnbution centre managers to iImprove their management skilts

Drver training 1s provided to employees using fork Iift trucks and other handiing equipment, in order to improve safety in the Distribution centre

The Group financially supports those employees wishing to obtain relevant professional qualfications whilst in s employment Profassional
staff are also encouraged to aftend trarng courses and seminars as and when necessary, in order that they keep up to date with
developments relevant to ther work and areas of expertise Career progression 1s avallable to employees across the Group

Employee consultation

The Group places considerable value on the involvement of its employees in matters affecting them as employees JJB has continued the
practice of keeping employees informed on such matters and on the varous factors affecting the performance of the Group This 1s achieved
through regular meetings involving Directors, managers and supervisory staff to convey information about the business as welt as via the
Company magazine and notice boards In addition, annual conferences are held for the Associate Directors, retail store management and
ftness club management The GMB Union are accepted by the Company to negotiate collective bargaining on behalf of hourly paid staff
within the Distnbution centre

In September 2007, the Group adopted a Sharesave plan, the maembership of which was offered to all employees with over 12 months
service with the Group, and at 27 January 2008, the plan had 644 members Under the plan, employees can save up to a monthly imit of
£250 and are given an ophon to buy ordinary shares in JJB Sports plc at the end of the 3 or 5 year term of the plan at a discount of 20 per
cent of the market value of the ordinary shares set in September 2007 There are no periormance condiions attached to these options

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of shareholders will be held at 12 noon on Thursday 24 Juty 2008 at the head office of JUB Sports plc at Martland
Park, Challenge Way, Wigan, WN5 0LD The Notice of the Meeting s at the back of this Annual report and Financial staterments on pages 87
to 88

Ordinary business of Annual General Meeting

(a) Dwectors' remuneratton report

In accordance with the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002, the Directors’ remuneration report will be abled for approval
by the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

(b) Auditors

Deloitte & Touche LLP have expressed ther willingness to continue in office as audrtors to the Company and a resolution for their re-
appontment as auditors and to authonse the Directors to determing therr remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
Ganeral Meeting

.
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JJB Sports plc

Directors’ report {continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Ordinary business of Annual General Meeting {continued)

{c) Election of Directors

The Articles of Association require one third of the Directors to offer themselves for re-election to the Board at every Annual General
Meeting (AGM}, in addition to the election of Directors appointasd dunng the year Roger Lane-Smith, Barry Dunn and Dawid Besver are
the Directors due to retre by rotation and resolutions will be proposed for their re-election at the forthcoming AGM  Alan Benzie, David
Jones and David Madeley have been appointed Directors smce the date of the last AGM and resolutions will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM for therr elaction

Special business of Annual General Meeting

(a) Renewal of Directors’ powers to allot shares

The existing generaf authorty of the Directors to allot ordinary shares will expire at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting
Resolution 11 (which will be proposed as an ordinary resolution), will give the Directors authonty to allot a further 79,628,360 ordinary
shares, with an aggregate nominal value of £3,981,418, which represents approximately one third of the 1ssued share capital of the
Company as at 20 May 2008 The Directors, however, have no present intention of exercising the proposed general authority sought
by Resolution 11 The authonty proposed to be granted will expire at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in 2009
or 15 months from the passing of the relevant resolution, whichever Is the earber The Company currently holds no treasury shares

(b) Disapplication of pre-emption nghts

At the last Annual General Mesting held on 17 July 2007, the Directors were empowered until the conclusion of the 2008 Annual General
mesting to make limited allotments of ordinary shares for cash, other than in accordance with the statutory pre-emption nghts Those
pre-emption nghts require a company to offer shares wiich are 1o be allotted for cash proportionately to existing shareholders first

Resolution 12 (which will be proposed as a special resolution} empowers the Directors, until the conclusion of the Annual General
Mesting to be held n 2009 or 15 months from the passing of the resolution, whichever 1s earlier, to 1ssue shares for cash, other than
proportionately to existing shareholders These powers are imited to the 1ssue of a further 11,944,360 ordinary shares having a nominal
value of £537 218 which I1s approximately 5 per cent of the Company’s 1ssued share capttal as at 20 May 2008 This resolution also
contains prowision to enable the Directors to deal with fractiona! entitlernents or other practical difficuities which could anse in the event
of a rights 1ssue or similar pre-emptive offer

Events after the balance sheet date

Events after the balance sheet date are set out In Note 42 in the Notes to the Financial statements, these can be summarnsed as

® The proposal by the Board to pay a final dvidend of 7 pence per ordinary share for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008, payment of
which 15 subject to approval by shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

. The acqusition of the Onginal Shoe Company chain of retall stores with effect from 28 January 2008
® The sate of 5 UK indoor soccer centres on 26 February 2008

. The sale of the Company’s shareholding in Umbro ple on 17 March 2008

J D Greenwood

Company Secretary
Martland Park, Challenge Way
Wigan, Lancashire, WN5 OLD

23 May 2008
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JJUB Sports plc

Corporate governance report
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Introduction

JJB s fully commitied to high standards of corporate governance and sets out below its report on how it complies with the provisions of tha
2006 Combned Code on Corporate Governance (‘the Code')

Comphance statement
The Comparny has, throughout the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008, compliad with the prowisions sat out in Section 1 of the Code except that

) Code provision A3 2 requires that at least half the Board, excluding the Chaiman, should compnse Noa-executve Directors who are
determined by the Board to be iIndependent There have been a number of Board changes dunng the accounting penod which have
resulted in code provision A3 2 being only complied with for the perod from 3 August 2007 to 26 Novernber 2007 For the greater part
of the accounting penod, the balance of Executive Directors to Non-executive Directors (excluding the Charman) was 4 3 Dunng the
pertod from 3 August 2007 to 26 Novernber, the balance was 33 Given the size of the Group and the expenence of Board members,
the balance of Non-executive and Executive Directors throughout the accounting penod 1s considered by the Board 10 be appropnate

. Cods provision 82 1 stiputates that the Charman can be a member of the Remuneration Committes, but cannot char the Committee
Roger Lane-Smith has been Charman of the Remuneration Committee throughout the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 and 15 not
considered as baing independent under the Code Given that there were at least 3 other expenenced, independent Non-executve
Directors on the Comnittee this 1s considered to be appropnate

A further explanation of how the pnnciples have been applied 15 set out below

The Board of Directors

The Board, which 1s ultimately respensible for the direction, management and performance of the company, met 10 tirmes dunng the 52 weeks
to 27 January 2008

On 27 January 2008 the Board compnsaed eight directors the Charman, the Chief Executve, three Executive Drirectors and three Non-
executive Directors Since the end of the accounting penod, one Executve Director has resigned Short biographies of the Drrectors who
currantly hold office are set out on pages 10 to 11 of this Annual report

Board Changes
Dunng the year endad 27 January 2008, there were several Board changes

On 8 June 2007, the Company’s founder, Dawd Whelan, sold his and his immediate family's entire sharehoiding n JJB 10 a joint venture
vehicla formed by keelandic financial group Exista hf and Chins Ronnig David Whelan resigned from the Board of Directors and ceased to be
involved in the operations of the business He was appointed Honorary Life President to reflect his outstanding contribution to the growth of
JJB over more than 30 years

The joint venture vehicle which was formed to acquire the shares held by Davd Whelan and his family 1s Hallco 1480 Limited, a company in
which Chns Ronnie holds 50 per cent of the 1ssued share capital

Chnis Ronnie was appointed to the Board as Deputy Chief Executive on 8 June 2007 and was appointed Chief Executive on 3 August 2007
when Tom Krught who until then had been Chief Executive, resigned from the Board Non-executive Director Roger Best resigned from the
Board and was replaced by Alan Berze on 3 August 2007

From 1 Octaber 2007 David Jones CBE, formerly Chief Executve and later Executive Chawrman of Next ple, was appointed as a Non-
executve Director

On 26 November 2007, Dawid Madeley was appointed as an Execuiive Director in the role of Commercial Director
On 1 January 2008, Non-executive Director Andrew Thomas resigned from the Board

On 30 Apnl 2008, after the end of the accounting penod, Dawd Greenwood resigned as an Executive Dwector, Dawd Greenwood had
previously held the role of Finance Director and Dawd Madeley was appointed Finance Director on that date, combining that role with his
existing role of Commercial Director
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JJB Sports plc

Corporate governance reponrt (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

The Board of Directors

Thera 1s a clear dwision of responsibilttes at the head of the Cornpany between the roles of the Chaman, Roger Lane-Smith who 1s
responsible for the operation of the Board and Chns Ronnie, the Chief Executive who 1s responsible for implementing strategy

Dawvid Beever 1s the nominated semor Independant Non-executive Director, replacing Andrew Thomas who resigned on 1 January 2008

The Board determiunes corporate strategy and reviews both financial and operational performance aganst forecasts Full and imely access
to &l relevant information 1s provided to all Board membars, via comprehensive information packs, i order that it can discharge its duties
effectvely The information packs are produced in advance of Board meetings and include up 1o date management accounts with
compansons to foracasts and detaled trading information

All the Non-executive Directors, including the Chatrrman, Reger Lane-Srmith, are considered by the Board to be independent of Management
and of the Company’s major shareholders Afthough Roger Lane-Smith was Senior Partner at DLA Piper UK LLP {“DLAT) from 1998 to 2005,
a firm of solicitors used by JJB, the Executve Directors befieve that the fees paid to DLA are not such as to interfere with his independent
character, jJudgment and integrity Dunng the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008, £497,000 was paid 1o DLA for legal work incurred dunng the
ordinary course of business (2007 £398,000} The amount paxd by the Group to DLA dunng the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008, represented
less than O 1 per cent of DLAs UK fee incoma

Andrew Thomas had been a Non-executive Director of the Company from 1994 until the date of his resignation on 1 January 2008 The Board
still regarded him as being independent daspite the length of time he had been on the Board as a result of his wide range of expenence both
as a practising Chartered Accountant and from his former position as an Executive Charman of a public company which operated in a similar
part of the leisure industry as JJB's fitness clubs

All Directors are subject to retrement by rotation and re-election by the Company's shareholders i accordance with the Aricles of
Association, subject 1o continued satisfactory performance The number of Directors closest to but not exceeding one third of the Directors
rgtire by rotation each year or, If this gives a number less than 3, then 1 further Director should retre All Directors are subject to electon by
the sharsholders at the first Annual General Meeting following their appaintment by the Board

Details of the notice pencds in the service contracts of Executive and Non-executive Directors are set out In the Directors’ remuneration report
on page 33 of this Annual report

There 1s an established procedure whereby any Chrector may, in the furtherance of therr duties, have access to independent professional
advice and senvices at the Group's expense The Chairman ensures that Board procedures are followed and that the Board seeks
independent advice whenever necessary Where considerad approprate, relevant traming s made avallable to any Director and the need for
such trarung I1s assessed on a regular basis

In order to assist n the discharge of comorate governance responsbilites, the Board has delegated certan responsibilities to Board
Committees, which operate within clearly defined terms of reference These committees are dascnbed below

Audit Committee

The Audt Committee, which meets twice a year, Is currently chaired by Alan Benzie who was appointed as Charman on 1 January 2008,
following the rebrament of the previous Chairman, Andrew Thomas Both Charmen have recert and relevant financial expenence The
Comrmuitee also compnses the other Non-executve Directors but does not mclude the Company Charman, Roger Lane-Smith The Finance
Director and the Group's external auditors also attend the meetings of the Committee

The Audrt Commuttee consults with the external audttors on the Group’s financial statements, accounting policies, nternal controls and the
nsk management process as well as any other matters raised by the external auditors The Cornmittee's responsibilibes also include making
a recommendation to the Board on the appointment, retwement and removal of the external auditors The Committes considers the
independence and objectmty of the external auditors, the services they provide, and the scope of therr audit work and related fees along with
a review of thewr reported findings  Any significant matters raised from the Group's internal audit funchon are referred to the Audit Committee
for thexr consideration Any matters raised at the Audit Committee meetings are, If appropnate, discussed and dealt with at subsequent Board
Meetings
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committes compnses all the Non-executive Directors and 15 chared by Roger Lane-Smith The Committee reviews and
approves the contractual and remuneration arrangements of the Executve Directors and the members of the Associate Board of Directors,
based upon ther performance during the accounting penod and also taking Into account the remunerabon packages of directors in
comparable pubkc companies Full details of the remuneration arrangements for the Directors are set out in the Drectors’ remuneration report
on pages 30 to 35 of this Annual repori

Nominations Committee

The Nominations Commuttee 1s chatred by Roger Lane-Smith and comprises the other Non-executive Directors The Committee 1s responsible
for malung recommendations on the appontment of new Directors to the Board and in respect of the Board's balance and structure

A shori-list of polential candidates for any vacant postion of Director 1s drawn up by the Chairman of the Committes afier discussions with
a range of semor retall trade executives and professional advisers These candidates are then nterviewad by the members of the Commitiee
before the Committee makes the decision who to nominate to the Board as their preferred candidate for the vacant position

Performance evaluation

The Chayrman through his attendance at Board Meetings and Executive Board Meetings, continually reviews the performance of the Board
and of all the ndnadual Directors

Attendance at Board/Committee Meetings

The following table shows the number of Board and Committes meetings held dunng the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 and the attendance
record of the indmdual Directors

Board Audnt Remuneration Nommnations
of Directors Committee Committee Committee
Number of meetings 10 2 2 3
R Lane-Smith 10 - 2 3
L Whelan {resigned 8 June 2007) 1 - - -
TW Knight (resigned 3 August 2007) ] - - -
J D Greenwood 9 - - -
BJK Dunn 10 - -
A.G Thomas {resigned 1 January 2008} 8 2 2 3
DMM Beaver i0 2 2 3
R C Best resigned 3 August 2007) 4 1 1 2
C Ronnie {appointed 8 June 2007) 7 -
AAE Benze (appomnted 3 August 2007) 5 1 1 1
D Jones (appointed 1 October 2007) 3 - 1 -
D P Madeley {appointed 26 November 2007} 2 - - -

Executive Board Meetings

Since the appointment of Roger Lane-Smith as Chawman in July 2005, reguiar meetings of the Executive Directors, have been held, chared
by Roger Lane-Smith Meetings are usually held at monthly ntervals and discuss an agenda compnsing current trading results and al the
major business decisions that are currently being made that affect the Group

Associate Board of Directors

Indnrduat Executive Directors are responsible for the control of operational matters In order to effect day to day control of the Group, a second
tier Board was created nn 1998 known as the Associate Board which currently compnses the Executive Directors and 18 Associate Directors
who are senior executives of the Group responsible for all key disciplines within the business

Whilst the Associate Directors have not been appointed to the office of Companies Act Director, therr experience and knowledge ensure a
strong knk between the Group's strategy which is set by the Board and its implementation across the business
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Intemnal control and nsk management

The Comparty has established an Internal control framework encompassing both ts financial and non-financtal controls, the effectvenass of
which 1s regularly reviewed by the Board and by senior executives, including the Associate Directors

The Board 1s uttimately responsible for mantaining the effectivensss of the Group’s nsk management processes and the system of internal
control, whilst 1t 1s the role of management to implement Board policies on nsk and control The Board 1s assisted in discharging its duties by
the Audit Committee, which provides a direct link to the external auditers through its regular meetings Such a systemn 1s designed to effectively
manage, rather than eliminate, the nsks that are significant to the futflment of the Group's business objectives of long term growth of
shareholder value wa the maxmisation of future earmings, and the safeguarding of the Group's assets

In accordance with the requirements of the Code, the Group has operated a continuous process for identifying, evaluating and managing any
significant nsk faced by the Group The Board regularly reviews the process, which has been in place throughout the 52 weeks to 27 January
2008 and to the date of approval of these Financial statements The process is designed to ensure that all significant nsks to the achievement
of the Group’s objectives are dentrfied on a timely basis, assessed and managed effectvaly

Any system of internal control can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance that all significant business nsks will be fully mitigated
However, by ensunng that the system of internal conitrol reflects the nsk emvironment in which the Group operates, the system should provide
adequate assurance that the key nsks facing the Group are properly managed

The Board sets the overall strategy and policy of the Group and has put in place a well-defined orgarsational structure, with clearty
understood lines of responsibility and delegation of authonty to help ensure that strategies and policies are effectively mplemented and
adhered to

Detaled operational procedures are adopted and followed by the Group's pancipal functional actvities and are designed to incorporate key
controls Thase key controls are subject to penodic review to ensure that they are being operated effectively and that they are sutable to
manage any significant business nsks faced by the Group Staff can rase concerns regarding any impropnety over financial reporting or other
matters through a “whistle blowing™ policy which ts referred 1o in the Corporate social responsibility report on page 29

The nsk management processes and internal controls are contnuously reviewed for effectiveness and assessed by the Board, as part of ther
Executive responsibiiies The Board considers all significant aspects of internal control, including financial, operational and compltance controls,
as well as the nsk management process adopted by the Group, and believes this will prowde the ability to promptly identify and appropniataly
respond to areas of matenal concern Any weaknesses wlentified as a result of these considerations are acted upon and remedied The Board
also takes into consideration any matters rased by the Audt Cormnmittee The Audit Committee has reviewed both the effectiveness and level
of resources available within the Group and believes that it ts appropnate for the size and nature of the nsks facing the Group

Auditor independence

Deloitte & Touche LLP have reported to the Audit Committee that, in therr professional jJudgment, they are iIndependent and that the objectrvity
of the audt partner and audit staff 1s not mpared The Audit Committee have reviewed this report and agrees with its conclusion and is
satisfied that Deloitte & Touche LLP has adequate policies and safeguards in place to ensure that auditor objectmty and mdependence 1s
mantaned The Audit Commuttes are aware that providing audit and non-audit advice could lead to a potential conflict of interest In order to
ansure the continued independence and objectivity of the external auditors there are established policies regarding the provision of non-audit
services

Relations with shareholders

The Group 15 committed to mantaining an actve dialogue with shareholders in order to build a mutual understanding of its objectives The
Board invites institutional shareholders and analysts to bnefings after the announcement of the Company’s Intenm and Annual results There
18 also regular dialogue with indmidual institutional investors, fund managers and analysts

The Board encourages commurication with private shareholders through publication of the Intenm and Annual results In addition, the Board
Issues trading updates at the time of the Annual General Meeting and after Chnstmas together with an Intenm management statement dunng
every hall year The Annual General Meeting 15 used as an opporturity 10 gather the views of shareholders and to answer the questions of
both private and insttutional investors on all ssues relevant to the Group

The Group's website, www [bcarporate co uk, also includes an area dedicated to corporate information, ncluding Annual and Intenm reports,
press releases, share price histones, Group news and certan Group policy documents
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Health and safety

Operating in & safe manner, with due consideration to the health, safety and welfare of alf employees and others who may be affected by the
Group's work activities, ts wital to the success of the business and 1s something to which the Group is fully commutted

Overall responsibility for health and safety strategy rests with the Board of Directors Bamy Dunn, the Group’s Property Director has overall
control of health and safety

B 15 now able to provide heatth and safety traning at all levels via its Trarming academy ulfising outside specialists whenaver the need
dictates All tramuing 18 supported by wideos, intranet and hard copies Two members of the JJB health and safety team have recently
completed the National Examination Board iIn Occupational Safety and Health (NEBOSH), confirming JJB's commitment to health and safety

Distribution centre managers have underiaken ‘Managing Safely’ courses organised by the Institute of Occupational Safety and Health, in
order to ensure the carmpetence of those managers in contnbuting to the overall safety of the Distnbution centre environment

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual report, Directors’ remuneration repart and the Financial statements in accordance with
applcable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepars financial statements for each financial year The Directors are required by the 1AS Regulation
to prepare the group financial statements under IFRSs (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and have also elected to prepare the Parent
Company financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union The financial statements are also required by
law to be properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements present faxty for each financial year the Company's financia! position,
financial performance and cash flows This requires the faithful representation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions in
accordance with the dafintions and recognition crtera for assets, liabilities, ncome and expenses set out In the International Accounting
Standards Board's ‘Framework for the preparation and presentation of financial statemants’ In virtually all circumstances, a fair presentation
will be achieved by compliance with all applicable IFRSs

However, Directors are also required to
. propery select and apply accounting policies,

[ present information, including accounting policies, I a manner that prowdes relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information, and

. provide additional disclosures when complance with the specific requirements In IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to understand
the impact of partcular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's financial posiion and financial performance

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tirme the financial posttion
of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Comparies Act 1985 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reascnabile steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other imegulartties

The Dwrectors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial mformation included on the Company’s website
Legislation in the United Kingdomn governing the preparation and disserination of financial staternenis may differ from legisiation in other
Junsdictions

Drrectors’ responsibility statement
We confirm to the best of our knowledge

1 The Financal statements, prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU, gve a true
and far view of the assets, labiities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and Group,

2 The Business review, which is conianed within this Annual report, Includes a far review of the development and performance of the
business and the position of the Company and the Group and a descniption of the pancipal nsks and uncertanties they face 1s gven
i1y the Dwectors’ report section of this Annual report
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Going concem

After making appropnats enquines, the Direclors have a reasonable expectabon that the Group has adequate resources to continug n operational
exastence for the foreseeable future For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concemn basis in prepanng the Group’s accounts

By order of the Board

C Ronnie D P Madeley
Chief Executve Finance Director
23 May 2008 23 May 2008

L NWW
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B recognises that it has a duty to ensure that its business is conducted in a socially responsible manner resuling in hugh standards of both
social and environmertal behaviour Through its employees, the Group ams to comply with all applicable laws in order to meet, and where
possible exceed, best practice conditions in both the national and global markets within which it operates

Corporate responsibility 1s monttorec on an ongoing basis via the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Cormmittes The CSR Committee 15
compnsad of a number of senior exscutives and s tasked with ansunng that the range of controls which JJB has in place to manage CSR
nsks are operating sffectively and that responsas to changes in current legistation are iImplemented n a timely manner

All of JUB's endeavours and initiatives across the corporate responsibility spectrum are focused towards the provtsion of ethically produced,
quality value for money products, through a safe and satisfied workforce in a way that benefits the communities within which the Group
cperates

Commitment

JJB 15 committed to minmismg any negative social impacts and wishes 10 he recogrused as a leading corporate citzen within all areas of its
operation JJB continues to be selected for inclusion in the FTSE4Good Index, launched in July 2001, which s designed to measure the
performance of companies that meet globally recognised corporate social responsibility standards and to facilitate investment in those
companies The FTSE4Good Index i1s used as a basts for the creation of socially responsible investment products

Inciusion within the FTSE4Good Index, allows JJB to compare and assess how it integrates responsible business practices through its
organisation with those of ts peers, identlying opportunities for improvernent, and to also prowvide further demonstraton to current and
potential shareholders that JUB s compliant with best practica

Guiding principles of corporate social responsibality

JJB 1s fully committed to ensurnng its business 1s conducted in a socially responsible manner and has developed a set of broad corporate
responsibiity pnnciples which it follows and which will guide s future progress These pnnciples relate to commurity relations, envronmental
1issues and ethical labour standards

Community relatons

JJB values the relabionships with both its customers and the wider communities within which it operates and will behave as a good fellow
ciizen in all areas of actvity

The Group prowdes a valuable serce to the communifies in which it operates by supplying a wide range of competitively pnced sports
clothing, footwear and accessonas through its retal stores to enable the general public to take part i healthy, sporting actmties and through
s fitness clubs, by supplying a valuable facility n which the general public can take part »1 a wide range of those healthy actwities
Government adwisers are constantly refernng to the importance of people of all ages taking part in some form of physical actwty and JJB
believes that i 1s a major national provider of both the means and the faciliies wihich help the general public to maintain a healthy ifestyle

By the employment and trainuing of its staff, JUB 1s allowing the redistribution of wealth back into the community The Group 1s fully committed
to ensunng that both the products and services it offers are defivered by way of focus upon the family and always with value for money in
mind As a further demonstration of the commitrnent to the community, pnor to the sale of most of its ndoor soccer centres In February 2008,
amost afl of those centres were avalable free of charge to local schools and socially challenged groups dunng the daytime

JJB 15 continuing to support local sporting teams and has become the official sponsor of the North West Counties Squash League JJB have
aranged a two year sponsorshup of the League which will not only benefit the League but also ther jumor squash team, the Cheshira Ladies
League and the Lancashire Ladies League

The Board recognises the need to extend the Group's ‘people first” philosophy beyond its business and deliver something tangtble back into
the community its community programme prowdes support to norrenated local and national chanties and good causes including Macmillan
Cancer Relief, Breakthrough Breast Cancer, the Brtish Heart Foundation and the Vanety Club Chidren’s Chanty The Group also offers
support 1o its employees who participate in chosen chanty projects
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Community relahons (contnued)

Macmillan Cancer Relief

Macmillan Cancer Relief 1s dedicated to helping people ivng with cancer They are working towards the day when everybody has equal and
ready access to the best posstble treatment and when care and unnecessary kevels of fear are set aside In the UK, over a mdlon people are
Imng with cancer and 4 1n 10 people will be diagnosed with cancer dunng therr Ifetme These figures are forecast to increase, and so will the
demand for Macmillan's services

JJB are pleased to continue to be associated with Macmillan Cancer Relief JJB has been mvolved in the sale of football badges to customers
and staff, through its network of retaill stores and Head office facilities, the proceeds of which are passed to Macmillan Cancer Relef JJB has
raised approximatety £22,500 dunng the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 This bnngs the total raised through JJB since the campaign began
In 1999, to over £1 2 milion

In addition to the sale of football badges, JJB s continuing to support Macmillan through the donation of 20 per cent of the retail price of an
exclustve leisure range which is sold through the retail chain store This campaign raised approximately £285,500 dunng the 52 weeks ended
27 January 2008 The money raised has helped fund Macmillan’s increasing range of services, Including the Macrvillan nurses and doctors,
new cancer care centres, the publication of a range of cancer information documents which are distnbuted through its information and
support centres, together with direct financiat help for those wha need 1t most

Breakthrough Breast Cancer

JJE raised £14,000 dunng Breast Cancer Awareness Month n October 2007, through fundraising and sales of the exclusive adidas pink
nbbon range in its retall store chain JJB is helping Breakthrough Breast Cancer to move ane step closer to their vision of a future free frorm
the fear of breast cancer

The Brnitish Heart Foundation

The management of JIB's fitness clubs have nominated the British Heart Foundation (BHF) as its nomnated charity partner The aim of the
Foundation 1s to play a leading role tn the fight against disease of heart and circulatory systems so that these areas are no longer a major
cause of disability and premature death

J4JB 1s aming to raise funds for ploneenng research and to provide defibrllators in local communities, through a vanety of fundrarsing intiatves
Dunng the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008, £20,000 has been raised through the sale of BHF locker tokens within JUB's fitness clubs

Vanety Club Children’s Chanty

The Vanety Club Children’s Chanty provides a wide range of support to sick, disabled and disadvaniaged children The money raised by the
chanty helps to buid paediatric unts, donate Sunshine Coaches to specral schools and to take groups of children on fun packed days out,
the Chanty aims to make a real difference to children's lives

Sunshine Coaches 1s a chanty that prowides children with the opportunity to get out and about in order to enjoy local faciities and discover
the world at targe through excursions and educational visits These coaches are specially adapted for children with special needs and are
donated to organisations which strive to Improve the qualty of Ife for young pecple, something with which JJB s proud to be associated

Management and staff from .JJB’s Golf department, led by the Associate Director of Equipment, Martin Wild, have for several years organised
an annual chanty golf tournament and the monies raised from the 2007 event totalled £60,000 beng sufficient to purchase 4 Sunshine
Coaches to add to the 31 coaches already purchased from the proceeds of sarlier years tournaments
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Enviuonmental issues

In stmang to achieve business objectives, JJB must also act responsibly n relation to the iImpact of ts actvties on the locat community and
on the environment at large and JJB has accordingly incorporated an environmental management system wathin its overall nsk management
framework JJB recognises its respansibility to mirymise environmental impacts and thiough the effective management of agreed action plans,
expects to achieve this whilst delvenng improved business performance JB will continue to be involved with FTSE4Good Index as descnbed
on page 26 of this Corporate social responsibiity reper, further demonsirating &s continuing commitment 1o be at the leading edge of current
environmental issues  The overall approach to environmental issues is iIncorporated within the core business management processes, and s
encapsulated within the following core pnnciples

. The reduchon of adverse environmental impacts ansing frorm the Group’s actmvities and operations,
. Ensunng effectrve and efficient use of matenals and energy,

. Mamntain a waste management system strategy which minimises waste ansing and maximises waste recovery whilst ensunng, wherever
possible, responsible disposal methods,

[ Ensure compliance with relevant emvironmental laws, statutory obligations and codes of best practice, and

. incorporate the pnnoiple of sustanable development through a systernatic approach to environmental management in order 1o achieve
continual Improvement

Environmental actions

The Board of JJB in association with The Carbon Trust are committed to a Carbon Management Programme Energy surveys of key sites
hava been completad and energy savings In both the use of energy and a consequent reduction in costs have been identified which can be
achieved through improved energy management This work will am to reduce the Group's “carbon footpnnt”™ and point the way towards
acheving a “carbon neutral™ postion

An important part of the Board's policy 1s to wherever possible source anergy efficient plart for its new retail stores and fitness clubs which
has the added advantage of the Group being abla to clam enhanced capital allowances on this expenditure

Recycling

Wherever possible, cardboard (the major packaging constituent in the business) and plastc are baled and passed to a recycling business for
reprocessing Dunng the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008, JJB increased s recyciing of plastic to 288 tonnes (2007 30 tonnes) whilst the
recycling of cardboard fell to 3,781 tonnes (2007 4,017 tonnes) This reduction In cardboard recycling 1s a reflechion of the reduced usage of
packaging by JJB Sports and the use of recycled tubs to transfer stock to stores

Since January 2008, JJB has introduced new meastires for the recyckng of all head office paper Dunng the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008,
JJB recycled 2 8 tonnes of paper which would otherwise have been sent to landfil JJB Sports 1s committed to reducing its fandfil waste

Ethical labour standards
As a responsible corporate citzen, JJB seeks to provde ts customers with high quality value for money products, sourced from suppliers

and manufacturers who can clearly demonstrate compliance with JJB’'s own codes of practice as well as internationally accepted standards

JB's Code of Business Ethics, the Suppler Code of Practice and the Factory Code of Conduct, which are set out on the website
www ihcomporate co uk, have been accepted by JJB's pancipal suppliers and source manufacturers The Codes are based upon the
internationally accepted pnnciples of the Ethical Trading Intiative Base Code of Labour Standards and the Model Code of Conduct devised
by the World Federation of the Sporing Goods Industry

JUB cares about the labour standards within its global supply chain and expects its suppliers to demonstrate similar concerns In order to
obtain assurance that the factones used by JJB's suppliers and source manufacturers comply with the Factory Code of Conduct and so
promote sustained improvement in factory working conditions, a factory inspection methodology has been ntroduced
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Ethical labour standards (continued)

As regards products directly sourced by JJB, the Group conducts nsk assessments of the foreign manufactunng units by means of audt
questonnarres which are completed detaling al! aspects of compliance and non-comphance These assessments are camed out by JJB's
own staff who, whitst based in Wigan, regularly go to the manufactunng unidts The manufactunng unit management and employees are
interviewed and an mnspection s camed out of all factory premises and documentation, such as time cards After each audit, the information
obtaned 15 collated, highlighting areas for mprovements to be made These mprovements are then fed back to the owners of the
manufactunng units for implementation JJB later cames out foflow-up inspections n order to ensure the Factory Code of Conduct 1s being
adhered to

The majonty of JUB's products are purchased from the UK subsidianes of mayor mternational supphers and because almost all these suppliers
source ther products in the far East Regular meetings are held with those suppliers in order to ensure that they have comprehensve
procedures in place to check compliance of therr manufactunng units with good practices regarding supply chain labour standards, the Group
tnes to ensure that its suppliers’ good practices are smilar 10 those that it insists upon In the manufactunng units that are directly used

Workplace

JJB applies the same level of commitment towards CSR within all its work places including its stores, fitness clubs, Head office, Distnbution
centre and other faciites, thereby ensunng a safe, challenging and rewarding work environment

The Board recogrises its rasponsibility for the maintenance of a safe and heathy workplace and work environment for employees and others
{customers, coniractors, wisitors and the general public) who may be affected by ts work or undertakings The Company policy as descrnibed
in the Retall Operations manual referred to below, states that all employees have a duty to act responsibly and take reasonable care for the
health and safety at work of themseives, ther colleagues and customers Further responsibiities are placed upon senior management and
the Property Director 1s tasked with keeping the Board advised on occupational health and safety matters

JUB 1s fully committed to the core pnnciple of Equal Opportunity within the workplace and acheres to high standards of employment practice
The Group has detaled employment policies which are appted in a far manner so as to reward people farly and provide appropnate levels
of parsonal development and traimng within 2 safe and healthy workplace

The Group's policies are designed to value the hurman nghts of all smplayses, whether directly employed, sub-contracted or employed within
the supply chain

JJB 15 dedicated to the highest standards of openness, probity and accountabidity In ine with that commitment, the Group encourages
employees and others with sencus concerns about any aspect of the Group's work to come forward and voice those concerns without fear
of repnsals Normally any concern about a workplace stuation would be raised with the employee's immediate kne manager or Head of
Department However, it 1s recogrised that this may be difficult In the event of an 1ssue being serious or of a sensitive nature, especialty where
the Group has so many places of work To facilitate this contact, JJB has introduced a ‘whistle blowing’ policy which encourages employees
to report undesirable prachces through either a nominated senior mamber of staff or through its confidential and anonymous telephone line

JJB operates a Customer service department which deals with all enquines or complaints made by customers and potential customers va
telephong, email and the postal system This service 1s cumrently in operation on weekdays during office hours but ¢ 1s Intended to expand
the department to increase its operations to cover all retal store opening hours

In order to mantain the consistent application of its policies and procedures throughout s retad store chan, JJB has distnbuted throughout
the chan, a Retal Operations Manual which contains in addition to its store work procedurgs, comprehensive guidance on ts Code of
Business ethics, its Health and Safety at work policies and its standards of Equal Opportunities JJB 1s currently instaling a new store based
management information system which will include the tacdity to display all the matters set out in the Retad Operations Manual on back office
computer screens, thereby gving all stores staff instant access to this informaton
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This Report has been prepared v accordance with Schedule 7A to the Companies Act 1985 The Report also meets the requirements of the
usting Rules of the Financial Services Authonty and describes how the Board has applied the Pnnciples relating to Directors’ remuneration
in the Combined Code As required by the Act, a resoiution to approve the Report will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
(AGM) of the Company at which the Annual report and Financial statements will be approved

The Act requrres the auditors to report on the audited information within the Directors’ remuneration report and to state whether in their opirion
those parts of the Report have been properly prepared In accordance with the Companies Act 1885 The Report has therefore been dndad
into separate sections for audited and unaudited information

Unaudited information

Constitution of the Committee

The Remuneration Committee 1s charred by Roger Lane-Smith and currently also consists of Alan Benzie, Dawnd Beever and David Jones
Andrew Thomas and Roger Best also sat on the Committes until the dates of their resignation Roger Lane-Smith does not participate in the
determination of his own remuneration package

Remuneration of Executive Directors

The remuneration of Executve Directors 1s deterrmirned by the Remuneration Committesa

The remuneration policy ams to ensure that the Executrve Directors are farty rewarded for ther individual contrbutions to the Group's
performance and that their remuneration packages are competitve with regards to those of comparable public comparves and, through a
performance related bonus and the award of share options, incentvise the Director concerned to improve the performance of the Group The
elements of rermuneration are a basic salary, performance related bonus, share options, certain taxable bengfits and contributions made into
Directors’ personal pension schemes

This remuneration pohcy will be continued dunng the currant accounting penod

Basic salary

The basic salanes of Executive Diractors are set by the Remuneration Commuittee who take into consideration the levels of salanes of Directors
n simiar szed public comparves within the FTSE 350 Index together with the current rate of inflation, these tevels are then tailored to indmdual
expenence, responsibiity and performance

The basic salanes of the Executive Directors were reviewed In January 2008 and increases were awarded to Chns Rennie and Barry Dunn
and backdated to 1 August 2007

Performance related bonus

The general pancipals on which the annual performance related bonus are hased and which have operated for a number of years, 1s that a
bonus scherne 1s set at the beginning of a new accounting period which will be payable if challenging profit performance targets are met A
related amount 1 deferred for a number of years and 1s only payable then if the Director remamns employed by the Group untl that tme The
bonus scheme applies to both Executve Directors and to Associate Directors

The performance related bonus which has been approved by the Remuneration committee for the 52 weeks to 25 January 2009 1s based
upon a challenging target of Group net profit before tax and exceptional operating tems, set at a level in excess of the actual net profits before
tax and exceptional operating iterns achieved 1n the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 A bonus of 100 per cent of the Directors’ basic pay will
be payable, but only i the target net profit 1s achieved

52 weeks to 27 January 2008

The performance related bonus scheme which was in operation for the accounting penod of 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 was in the form
of an annual payment, calculated as a percentage of the Direstors’ basic salary (from nd per cent to 80 per cent of salary) based upon the
targeted pre-tax profits of the Group for that accounting penod {from £45 million to £55 million} A further bonus, calculated as a percentage
of the Directors’ basic salary (from rul per cent to 40 per cent of salary), and agan based upon the pre-tax profits for that accounting perod
{from £45 milion to £55 milion) would be payable in March 2010, o the Director was still In the Company’s employment at that date The
meimum target of pre-tax profits was not met and therefore no performance related bonus was payable In respect of this accounting penod
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JJB Sports plc

Directors’ remuneration report (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Performance related bonus (continued)
52 weeks to 28 January 2007

A similar performance related bonus scheme to the one above was offered In respect of the accounting penod of 52 weeks to 28 January
2007 This bonus scheme was calculated as a percentage of the Directors’ basic salary {from nil per cent to 40 per cent), based upon the
targeted pre-tax profits of the Group for that accounting penod (from £33 milion to £42 million) with an equvalent bonus being payable in
Apnl 2008 if the Director was still in the Company's employment at that date

The pre-tax profits that were achieved in this accounting penod resutted in the maximum bonus becoming payable, amounting to £383,000

During the 52 weeks 1o 28 January 2007, a bonus earned but deferred from the accounting penod of 52 weeks to 25 January 2004 of
£220,000 {2006 nil) was also paid to the Executive Diractors

Share cption schemes

Grants of share options to Executive Directors and senior executives are made only at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee Options
are not routinely granted but made on an indmdual basis to incentvise the participants to the Scheme to improve the performance of the
Group

For a number of years, JJB had operated two Share option schemes that were created in 1999 However in 2008, the Remunaration
Committee reviewed the share based incentwve arrangements then in aperation and concluded that in order to ensure that there 1s a sufficient
range of share based incentives avalable to the Committee, shareholder approval should be sought at the 2006 AGM for the adoption of two
new share plans These two share plans were duly approved at the 2006 AGM and compnse a Long term incentva plan from which awards
have only been made to Executive Directors and an Unapproved share option scheme Awards under the 2006 Unapproved share option
scheme were initially only made to senior executives but dunng 2007 and 2008, awards have also been made under this scheme to Execiive
Directors

Details of share plans which have been awarded 10 the Executive Directors, beng the 1999 Share option schemes, the 2006 Long term
ncentive plan and the 2006 Unapproved share option scheme are set out below Executve Directors are entitled to join the 2007 Sharesave
plan Drectors' beneficial interests in all these share schemes are set out In the table on page 35 of this Report

1999 Share option schemes

The maximum value of optons granted to any employee under the 1999 Approved Share option scheme was restncted to £30,000 In
addiion, options could be granted under the 1999 Unapproved Share option scheme, the maximum number being calculated by a formula
which restncted the value of the options granted to any employee to four times their basic salary, less the value of any options granted under
the 1999 Approved Share option scheme

The exercise of these share options was subject to performance conditions requinng vanous growths N earmings per ordinary share of the
Group, over three consecutive financial penods In respact of the share options granted to David Greenwood, which he exercised dunng the
52 weeks to 27 January 2008, the performance condition attached to the options, for the options to be fully exercisable, was a target growth
in Group earnings per ordinary share of more than 10 per cent per annum phus the percentage increase In the Retail Prnce Index

For more recently 1ssued share options under these schemes, the performance condiion was a target growth in Group earnings per ordinary
share of more than 4 per cent per annum plus the percentage increase in the Retal Pnce index over three consecutive financial penods For
tha options to be exarcisable in relation to half the shares comprised in any option, the increase in earnings per ordinary share was to be half
the target growth
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Directors’ remuneration report (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Share option schemes (continued)

Long term incentive plan

Awards made under the Long term incentive plan (“LTIP7) are made over a specified number of shares The shares are acquired by the award
holder at the beginning of the measurement penod but the ownership of the shares are held in Trust and will remain conditional until atter the
end of the measurement penod For the awards to bacome unconditional, certain performance conditions must be satisfied and then a
participant will obtain absolute ownership of the shares

The Remuneration Committee proposed that the performance conditions to which any award was to be made under the LTIP in 2006 would
be spiit nto 2 equal parts and each part would be subject to diferent performance measures One part was based upon achieving a target
earnings per share dunng the 52 weeks to 25 January 2008, of 16 68 pence per ordinary share The second part was based upon a total
shareholder return perforrmance measured aganst comparator companies over a three year penod commencing on the data of the award of
the LTIP The comparator comparues are as follows

Marks & Spencar Gus Next

Matalan Halfords N Brown Group
Topps Tiles Woolwonhs Blacks Leisure
Ted Baker French Connection John David Group

Different performance conditions may be selected by the Remuneratton Committee for future awards made under the LTIP, but if the
performance conditions for future awards are changed, shareholders will be informed through the Directors’ remuneration report in future
Annual reports

2006 Unapproved share option scheme

Options under the 2006 Unapproved share option scheme were awarded to Chns Ronnie in November 2007 The number of ordinary shares
over which the award was granted was based upon thrée times the current salary of Chns Ronnie and the market pnce of the ordinary shares
at the time of grant The exercise of these options 1s subject to a performance target requinng growth in Group profits of more than
4 per cent per annurmn plus the percentage increase in the Retall Price Index over 3 years from the base year which 1s the accounting penod
of 52 weeks to 28 January 2007, these oplions can be exercised between November 2010 and November 2017

2007 Sharesave plan

Executrve Directors can also participate in the new 2007 Sharesave plan which s open to all employees of the Group with over 12 months
sarvice This Plan 1s an Inland Revenue approved Save As You Earn (“*SAYE") savings contract Inland Revenua rules imit the maximum
amount saved under the savings contract to £250 per month The cplions were offered at a fixed set pnce calkculated at the start of the 3 or
5 years term of the SAYE savings contract by apphying a discount of 20 per cent to the market pnce of JUB's ordinary shares in Septernber
2007 The options under the Sharesave plan may normally be exercised dunng the penod of 8 months after completion of the 3 or 5 year
term of the SAYE savings contract There are no performance conditions attached to these options

Taxable benefits

Executive Dwectors are eligble for taxable benefits, which include membershup of a private medical scheme and the provision of a company
car with payment of its operating expenses, including private mileage, or the payment of a monthly lump sum towards the costs incurred on
business travel in therr own car

Pensions

The Executive Directors make contrbutions to their own personal pension schermes and the Company contributes a similar amount into those
schemes, lirmted to 10 per ¢ent of their baskc salary
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Directors’ remuneration report (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Contracts of service

The service contracts of all the Executve Directors have no fixed term The service contracts of all the Executive Directors are terminable on
8 months’ notice by erther party but those of Dawd Greenwood and Barry Dunn alse contain a change of control clause which provides for
12 months' natice In the event of a change of control of the Group On 22 January 2008, the Directors’ remuneration committee approved
a change 1n the notice penod for all Executive Directors, from 6 months’ notice by either party to 12 months nolice by exther party

The service contract of David Greenwood was dated 10 November 1994, Barry Dunn’s was dated 7 June 1996, Chns Ronmie’s was dated
11 June 2007 and Dawvid Madeley's was dated 3 December 2007

Remuneration and contracts of service of Non-executive Directors

The remuneration of the Non-executive Directors 1s in the form of Directors fees and 1s determined by the Board after consuftation with the
Executive Dwrectors and after taking into account the performance of the Non-executve Directors and the levels of remunsration paid by
comparable public companies The levels of fees payable to Non-executve Directors were reviewed in April 2007 with the increase being
backdated to 1 February 2007  In January 2008, the fees of the Non-executve Directors have agan been reviewed and the iIncreases applied
from 1 February 2008

The Non-executive Directors do not recenve any pension or other benefits from the Company, nor do they participate in any bonus, incentive
or share option schemes

Non-executive Directors have 3 year service contracts with the Company, temminable on 3 months' notice by either party

The letter of appointment of Roger Lane-Smith was dated 13 January 1999, Dawvid Beever's was dated 26 May 2000, that of Alan Benzie
was dated 16 August 2007 and that of David Jones was dated 30 September 2007

Performance graph of Total Shareholder Return

The graph below shows the Group's Total Shareholder Return (TSR) compared to the FTSE General Retad Index aver the last 5 years (rebased
10 31 January 2003} TSR s defined as the share pnce growth plus reinvested dwidends The index chosen for the companson demonstrates
the Group's TSR in companson to the average for companies operating in the same sector
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Directors’ remuneration report (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2003

Audited information

Directors’ detailed emoluments

Detals of ndmdual Directors’ remuneration for the accounting pertod were as follows

Performance Compensation
Fees as Basic related Taxable Pension for loss 2008 2007
Directors salary bonus benefits contnbubons of office Total Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Executive Directors
C Ronma
(apponted 8 June 2007) - 250 - 18 25 - 293 -
J D Greenwood - 265 - 27 26 - 318 439
BJK Bunn - 242 - 26 14 - 282 365
D P Madeley
(appointed 26 November 2007} - 49 - 1 5 - 55 -
TW Knight (resigned 3 August 2007) - 171 - 7 17 829 1,024 550
D Whelan (resigned 8 June 2007) - a8 - 10 - - 108 402
Non-executive Directors
R Lane-Smith 125 - - - - - 125 100
DMM Besver 35 - - - - - 35 30
AG Thomas
(resigned 1 January 2008) 52 - - - - - 52 30
R C Best (resigned 3 August 2007) 18 - - - - - 18 30
AAE Benze
(appointed 3 August 2007) 18 - - - - - 18 -
DC Jones
{appointed 1 October 2007) 46 - - - - - 46 -
Total 294 1,075 - 89 87 829 2,374 1,946
2007 total 190 1,000 603 89 64 -

Included in the above 1s £34,000 (2007 nil) pad to a thed party company In respect of consultancy fees for David Jones and £19,500
(2007 nl) pad to another third party company in respect of consultancy fees for Andrew Thomas
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Directors’ remuneration report (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Share options
Directors’ benelicial interests in share options at the beginrung and the end of the accounting penod, were as follows

Number of 5p Ordinary Shares
Share  Exercised Granted Share Exercise
options at durng dunng options at pncs Date from Exercise
28 January accountng accountmg 27 January per share whuch expiry
Scheme 2007 penod penod 2008 (pence) exercisable clate
C Ronne 2006 Unapproved - - 656,019 656,019 154 34 131110 121117
Total - - 656,019 656,019
JD Greenwood 1999 Approved 15 800 {15,800) - - 188 84 - -
1999 Unapproved 330,000 (330,000) - - 189 84 - -
1939 Unapproved 175,000 - - 175,000 253 00 260507 250514
20086 LTIP scheme 423,928 - - 423,928 000 030809 04 07 11
2007 Sharesave plan - - 5,680 5,680 169 00 011110 010511
Total 944,728 (345,800) 5,680 604,608
BJK Dunn 1969 Unapproved 125,000 - - 125,000 25300 260507 2505 14
2006 LTIP scheme 347,621 - - 347,621 000 030809 04 07 11
2007 Sharssave plan - - 2,272 2272 169 00 011110 0105 11
Total 472,621 - 2,272 474,893
Total 1,417,349 {345,800) 663,971 1,735,520

On 17 May 2007, David Greenwood exercised his options on 15,800 ordinary shares under the 1999 Approved scheme and 330,000 ordinary
shares under the 1899 Unapproved scheme at an exercise pnce of 282 63 pence realising a gain before tax of £334,400

The exerctse of options under both 1999 share option schemes and under the 2006 Unapproved scheme are subject to performance
conditions that require vanous growths in earrings per ordinary share as explaned on pages 31 (o 32 of this Directors’ remuneration report
The exercise of shares under the LTIP scheme 15 subject to performance conditions refating partly to earmings per share and partly to total
shareholder return, as set out on page 32 of this Directors’ remuneration report

The market pnce of 5 pence ordinary shares on Fnday 25 January 2008 was 112 50 pence and the range dunng the accounting penod was
92 50 pence to 302 25 pence

Subsequent to the end of the accounting penod, on 13 May 2008, options over 350,000 ordinary shares were granted to David Madeley
undsar the 2008 Unapproved scheme, with an exercise price of 114 75 pence per share

R Lane-Smuth
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

23 May 2008
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of JJB Sports pic
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

We have audited the Group and Parent Company financial statements of JJB Sports pic for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 which compnse the
Consphdated income statement, the Consobdated statement of recognised income and expense the Consolidated reconcilation of movements 1n
equity the Consolidated and Parent Company Balance sheets, the Consolidated and Parent Company Cash fiow statements, the Statement of
accounting policies and the related Notes 1 to 42 These Financial statements have been prepared under the accounting pohcies set out therein We
have also audited the information in the Directors’ remuneration report that s descnbed as having been audited

This repart 1s made solely to the Company's members as a body In accordance with section 235 of tha Companies Act 1885 Our audt work has
been undertaken so that wa rmight state to the Company's members those matters we are required to siate to them tn an auditors’ report and for no
other pumpase To the fullest extent parmitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's
members as a body, for our audt work, for this Report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibirties of directors and auditors

The Directors’ responsibilties for prepanng the Annual report, the Directors’ remuneration report and the Financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Financial Reporing Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union are set out in the Staternent of Drectors’
responsibilites on page 24

Our responsibility 1s to audit the Financial statements and the part of the Directors' remuneration report 1o be audited In accordance with relevant legal
and regulatory requiremnents and Internatonal Standards on Auditing (UK and Irstand)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the Financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ remuneration report to be audted have been propery prepared in accordarce with the Comparves Act 1985 and, as regards the
Consolidated financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation We also report to you whether in our opinion the information grven in the Directors®
report 15 consistent with the Financial statements The information gven In the Directors’ report includes that specific information presented in the
Business review that Is cross referred from the Enhanced business review section of the Drectors” report

In addition wa report to you f, in our opinion  the Company has not kept proper accounting records If we have not receved all the information and
explanations we require for our audt, or if nformaton specified by law regarding Directors' remuneration and other transactions i1s not disciosed

We review whether the Corporate governance report reflects the Company’s comphance with the nine provisions of the 2006 Combined Code specified
for our review by the Listing rules of the Financial Services Authonty, and we report If it does not We are not required to consider whether tha Board's
statements on internal control cover all nsks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's corporate governance procedures or
1ts nsk and control procedures

We read the other information contained in the Annual report as descnbed in the Contents section and consider whether it 1s consistent with the audited
Financial statements The other nformation compnses onty the Directors’ report, the unaudited part of the Dwectors’ remuneration report, the
Charrman’s statement, the Business review and the Corporate governance report We consider the imphcations for our Report if we become aware of
any apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the Financial statements Our responsibdites do not extend to any further information
outside the Annual report

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intarnational Standards on Auditng (UK and Ireland) ssued by the Auditing Practices Board An audi
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the Financial statements and the part of the Directors’
remuneration report to be audited I also includes an assessmeant of the significant estimates and judgments made by the Directors in the preparation
of the Financial statements and of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group’s and Parent Company’s crcumstances consistenty
apphed and adequately disclosed

We planned and periormed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considersd necessary n order to provide us with
sufficient evdence to gve reasonable assurance that the Financial statements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited are free
from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other rregulanty or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of informaton in the Financial statements and the part of the Directors remuneration report to be audited

Opinion

In our opinion

L] the Consoldated financial statements give a true and fair view 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Europsean Union of the state of the
Group’s affars as at 27 January 2008 and of i1s profit for the 52 weeks then endad,

® the Parent Company financial statemments give a true and farr view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union as apphed in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985 of the state of the Parent Company's altars as at 27 January 2008

| ] the Financial siatements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report required to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985 and as regards the Consolidated financial staiements Article 4 of the IAS Regutation, and

L] the information gven in the Directors' report 1s consistent with the Financral staterments

Separate opimon in relation to IFRSs

As explained in the Statement of accounting policies in the Consolidated financial statements the Group in addition to comphang wath its legal obligation
to comply with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, has also complied with the IFRSs as issued by the international Accounting Standards Board

In our apinion the Consohdated financial statements give a true and far view, n accordance with IFRSs, of the state of the Group’s affairs as at
27 January 2008 and of its profit for the 52 week penod then ended

o%jt rL’\-:-—oL-_L R
e & louche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Manchaster, United Kingdom

23 May 2008
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JJB Sports plc

Consolidated income statement
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

52 weeks to 52 weeks to
27 January 28 January
2008 2007
Note £'000 £'000
Continuing operations
Revenue 3 811,754 810,287
Cost of sales (405,642) (425,314)
Gross profit 406,112 384,973
Other operating Income 3 3,314 5,163
Distnbution expenses (28,619) (23.844)
Adrministration expenses {35,413) (33,439)
Selling expenses (334,099) (293,832)
Operating profit 11,295 39,021
Operating profit 1s stated after (charging) crediting
Prowvision for restructunng of retail store chain 5 {24,970) -
Increase in provisions relating 1o legal penalty and interest thereon - {4,063}
Charges relating to the closure of the Icon stores 5 - {3.343)
Net gain (loss) on disposal of property, plant and equpment 5 1,996 {1,317)
(22,974) {8.723)
Investment income 7 11,551 9,437
Finance cests 8 (12,442} (9,965)
Share of results of associated undertaking 17 396 -
Profit before taxation 5 10,800 38,493
Taxation 9 (1,170) (12,668)
Profit after taxation for the penod atitnbutable to equity holders of the parent 34 9,630 25,825
Basic eamings per ordmary share Pence 12 407 1107
Diluted eamings per ordinary share Pence 12 407 1107
Adjusted basic earnings per ordinary share Pence 12 10 89 1421
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JJB Sports plc

Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

52 weeks to 52 weeks to

27 January 2B January

2008 2007

£'000 £°000

Gan on revaluation of avallable-for-sale investment taken 1o equity 1,555 -

Taxation effect on item taken directly to equrity (435} -

Exchange differences on translation of foregn operations (1,398) 163

Net {expense) mcome recognised directly m equity (278) 163

Profit after taxation for the penod 9,630 25,825

Recognised income and expense for the penod 9,352 26,988
Consolidated reconciliation of movements in equity

For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

52 weeks to 52 weeks to

27 January 28 January

2008 2007

£'000 £'000

Opening total equity 377,026 364,593

Recognised mncome and expense for the penod 9,352 25,988

Share issues 1,899 3,359

Share based payment reserve 383 297

Investment In own shares - {3,083)

Dvidends approved {23,672) (23,238)

Scnp dwvidends re-invested 67 9,110

Closing total equity 365,055 377,026
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JJB Sports plc

Consolidated balance sheet

As at 27 January 2008
As at Asat
27 January 28 January
2008 2007
Restated
(see notes 22 and 24)
Note £'000 £'000
Non-current assets
Goodwill 13 187,834 188,459
Other intangible assets 14 25,417 27,397
Property, plant and equipment 15 198,272 198,980
Investment in associated undertaking 17 1,677 -
Loan to associated undertaking 17 4,000 -
417,200 414,836
Current assets
Inventones 18 114,984 128,082
Trade and other recevables 19 45,412 38,205
Current asset invastments 20 196,217 168,117
Cash and cash equivalents 21 14,199 23,566
Current tax recenvable 1,536 -
372,348 357,970
Total assets 789,548 772,806
Current habilibes
Trade and other payables 22 (110,874) {113,509)
Current tax lability - (6,022)
Loan notes 23 {168,117) (168,117)
Provisions 24 {22,656) (12,380)
(301,647} (300,028)
Net current assets 70,701 57,942
Non-current habifities
Bank loans 23 {56,355) (32,812
Deferred tax habilities 25 (24,237) (23,416)
Deferred lease incentives 26 (39,950) (38,827)
Provisions 24 (2,304) (897)
{122,846) {85,752)
Tota! habilhities {424,493) (395,780)
Net assets 365,055 377,028
Equity
Share capital 27 11,944 11,892
Share premium account 29 171,248 169,334
Capital redemption reserve 30 1,069 1,069
Investment in own shares 31 (3,083) {3.083)
Share based payment reserve 3z 680 297
Forexgn currency translation reserve 33 (1,211) 187
Retaned earnings 34 184,408 197,330
Equity attnbutable to equrty holders of the parent 365,055 377,026

The Financial statements were approved Wﬁ?ﬁm authorised for 1ssus on 23 May 2008 They were signed on s behalf by
.
R Lane-Smith Chairman \ . \/\- S — &

D P Madeley Director @2 / ,( 2. ,: 5
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JJB Sports plc

Consolidated cash flow statement
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Note
Net cash from operating activibies 35

Investing activities

Interest receved

Dradend recerved from avatlable-for-sale investment

Purchase of subsichary

Cash and cash equvalents of subsidiary acquired

Net proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Net proceeds on disposal of intangible assets

Purchass of goodwill

Purchase of intangible assets 14
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 15
Investrment in assoctated undertaking 17
Purchase of avalable-for-sale nvestment 20

Net cash used m investing actvihes

Financing activities

Interast pad

Dmdends paid

Investment in own shares

Proceeds from issues of share capital

Net proceeds from bank loans

Repayment of bank loan

Loan to associated undertaking 17

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equvalants at beginrung of penod

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of penod 21

40

52 weeks to 52 weeks 10
27 January 28 January
2008 2007
£'000 £°000
45,349 80,339
11,263 9,437
288 -
(31) (1,228)

- 23

5,146 1,956
153 -
(339) -
(182) {18,488)
(27,217} (33,124)
{1.281) -
(26,545) -
(38,805) {41.216)
{12,399) {9,930)
(23,605) {14,128
- (3.083)
1,899 3,359
23,500 17,892
- {45,000}
{4,000) -
{14,605) {50,890)
(7.061) {11,767)
23,566 34,860
{2,306) 473
14,199 23,566
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JUB Sports ple

Company balance sheet

As at 27 January 2008
As at As at
27 January 28 January
2008 2007
Restated
{see notes 22 and 24}
Note £'600 £'000
Non-current assets
Goodwill 13 340 178
Cther intangible assets 14 25,417 27,397
Property, plant and equipment 15 181,753 180,330
Investments 1n subsidianes 16 249,660 250,447
Investrnant in assocated undertaking 17 1,281 -
Loan to associated undertaking 17 4,000 -
462,451 458,353
Current assets
Inventones 18 96,109 107,725
Trade and other recervables 19 42,079 38,181
Current asset investments 20 196,217 168,117
Cash and cash equivalents 21 12,583 10,675
Current tax receivable 5,666 -
352,654 324,698
Total assets 815,105 783,051
Current habilies
Trade and cther payables 22 {283,692) (262,914)
Current tax ability - (2,453)
Loan notes 23 {168,117) {168,117)
Provisions 24 {17,857) (11,378)
{469,666) {444,862)
Net current habilities {117,012) {120,164)
Non-current habilihes
Bank loans 23 (56,355) (32.812)
Deferred tax labities 25 (23,883) (22,913)
Deferred lease incentives 26 {36,896) (35,613
Provisions 24 {1,829} 407)
{118,963} {81,745)
Total habiltes (588,629) (536,607)
Net assets 226,476 246,444
Equity
Share capital 27 11,944 11,892
Share premium account 29 171,248 169,334
Capital redemption reserve 30 1,069 1.069
Investment in own shares 31 (3,083) (3.083)
Share based payment reserve az 630 297
Retained eamings 34 44,618 66,935
Total Equrty 226,476 246,444

The Financial siatements were approved by the Board of Directors an e on 23 May 2008 They were signed on its behalf by
\C -

R Lane-Snuth Non-executive Chairman — T ——

D.P. Madelay Director j )m-:‘(
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JJUB Sports plc

Company cash flow statement
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Net cash from operating activities

Investing activihes

Interest recened

Dmdend receved from avalable-for-sale investments
Purchase of subsidiary

Net proceads on disposal of property, plant and equiprment
Net proceeds on disposal of intang:ble assets
Purchase of gocdwili

Purchase of ntangible assets

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Investment in associated undertaking

Purchase of avalable-for-sale investments

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activihes

Interest pad

Dendlerds pard

Investment in own shares

Proceeds from 1ssues of share capital
Net proceeds from bank loans
Repayment of bank loan

Repayment of bank overdraft

Loan to associated undertaking

Net cash used in financing activihes

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginmung of penod
Cash and cash equivalents at end of penod
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52 weeks to 52 weeks o

27 January 28 January

2008 2007

Note £'000 £°000
35 58,287 99,519
11,222 9,408

2838 -

{31) {1,228)

3,314 2,454

153 -

(339) -
14 (182) {18,488}
15 {26,380) (32,130)
17 {1,281) -
20 (26,545) -
(39,781) (39,984)

{12,392) {9,930

(23,605) {14,128)

- {3.083)

1,899 3,359

23,500 17,892

- {45,000
- {20,412}

17 (4,000) -
{14,598} (71.302)
1,908 (11.767)

10,675 22,442

gl 12,583 10.675
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JJB Sports plc

Statement of accounting policies
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Accounting penod

Every accounting perod ends on the Sunday which falls before, but closest to 31 January, resulting in accounting penods of esther 52 or 53
weeks

Adoption of new and revised Standards

With regard to these Financial statements for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 the Group has adopted IFRS 7 Fnancial Instruments
Disclosures which s effective for annual reporting periods beginming on or after 1 January 2007, and the related amendments to (AS 1
Fresentation of Financial Statements The impact of the adoption of IFRS 7 and the amendmaents to I1AS 1 has been to expand the disclosures
provided n these Financial statements regarding the Group's financial instruments and management of capital as set out in note 39 In the
Notes ta the Financial staternents

In addition, the Group has elscted te adopt IFRS 8 Operating Segments in advance of ts effectve date This Standard 18 effective for
accounting penods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of nternal reports about components of the Group that are regularty reviewed
by the Chief Executive to allocate resources to the segments and to assess therr performance In contrast, the predecessor Standard (AS
14 Segment Reporting) required the Group to identrfy two sets of segments (business and geographical), using a nsks and rewards approach,
with the Group's system of internal financial reporting to key management personnet serang only as the starting point for the dentification of
such segments As a result, following the adoption of IFRS 8, the dentification of the Group’s reportable segments has changed and the prior
penod disclosures have been restated accordingly

At the date of authonsation of these Financial statements, the following Standards and interpretations which have not been applied In these
Financial statements were In issue but not vet effective

IFRIC 4 Deterriring Whether an Arrangement Cantains a Lease

IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arangements

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyally Programmes

IFRIC 14 IAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Mimmum Funding Regurements and therr interaction

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in future penods will have no matenal iImpact on the Financial
statements of the Group
Basts of preparation

The Financial statements have been prepared N accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) The Financial
staternents have also been prepared in accordance with IFRSs adopted by the European Union and therefore the Group Financial statements
comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regutation

The Financial statements have been prepared on the histonical cost basis, except for the revaluation of certan properiies and financial
instruments  The pnnoipal accounting policies adopted are set out below
Basis of consolidation

The Financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and enthies controlled by the Gompany (its subsidianes),
together making up the Group Control 1s achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating pohcies of an
entity so as 1o be able 1o obtam benefits from its actmties

On acquisition, the assets and habilites and contingent habilibes of a subsidary are measured at therr far values at the date of acquisiiion
Any excess of the cost of acquisiion over the far values of the identfiable net assets acquired I1s recognised as goodwill Any deficency of
the cost of acquisiion below the farr values of the identifiable net assets acquired 15 credited to capital reserve In the penod of acquistion

The results of subsidianes acquired or disposed of during the accounting penod are included in the Consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisttion or up 10 the effectve date of disposal, as appropnate

Where necessary, adjustments are made o the financial staterments of subsidianes to bnng the accounting policies used Into kne with those
used by the Group

Al ntra-group transactions, balances, Income and expenses are eliminated on consoldation

No Income staternent 1s presented for JJB Sports plc, as permitted by Section 230 of the Comparues Act 1985
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JJB Sports plc

Statement of accounting policies (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Busmness combmnations

The acquisition of subsidianes 15 accounted for using the purchase method The cost of the acquisition 1 measured at the aggregate of the
far values, at the date of exchange, of assets grven, llabities Incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group In exchange
for control of the acquires, pius any costs directly attributable to the business combination The acquiree's identifiable assets, liabiites and
contingent labilities that meet the condtions for recogniion under IFRS 3 are recogresed at therr far value at the acquisition date, except for
non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS & Non Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued QOperations, which are recognised and measured at far value less costs to sell

Goodwil ansing on acquistion 1S recogrised as an asset and intially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group's Interest in the net farr value of the 1dentfiable assets, kabilires and contingent llabilties recognised I, after
reassessment, the Group's interest in the net far value of the acquiree's iIdentifiable assets, kabiities and contingent habilities exceeds the cost
of the business combination, the excess Is recognised immediatety 0 the profii or loss

The interest of minorty shareholders 1n the acqurree 1s inbially measured at the minomnty’s proportion of the net far value of the assets, kabilities
and contingent habililes recognised

Goodwill

Goodwill ansing on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the farr value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity at the date of acquisition Goodwill 1s inihially recogrised as an asset
at cost and 1s subsequently measured at ¢ost less any accumulated impamrment Iosses Goodwill which 1s recognised as an asset 1S reviewed
for impairment at least annually Any imparment I1s recognised iImmediatety in the profit or loss and 1s not subsequently reversed

On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entrty, the attnbutable amount of goodwill 15 included in the determination of the
profit or loss on disposal

Goodwill ansing on acquistions before the date of transition to IFRSs has been retained at the previous UK GAAP cammying amounts subject
to being tested for mparrment at the end of every accounting penod including the date of transition

Investments in associated undertalangs

An asspciate 1s an entity over which the Group 1s 1in a position to exercise significant influence, but not control or pint contral, through
participation 1n the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee Significant influence 1s the power to participate In the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but 15 not control or joint control over those policies

The results and assets and liabithes of associates are incorporated in these Finanoial statements using the equity method of accounting
Investments in associates are camed n the Balance sheet at cost as adjusted by post-acquistion changes in the Group’s share of net assets
of the associate, less any impairment in the value of indvidual Investments Losses of an associate In excess of the Group’s interest in that
associate (which meludes any long-terrm interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net nvestment in the associate) are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has ncurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate

Any excess of the cost of acquisiion over the Group's share of the far values of the identifiable net assets of the associate at the date of
acquistion 15 recognised as goodwill The goodwill 1s included within the camying amount of the investment and 1s assessed for mparment
as part of that investment Any deficiency of the cost of acquistion below the Group's share of the farr values of the identriable net assets of
the associate at the date of acquisition (e discount on acguisition) ts credited in profit or loss in the penod of acquistion

Where a Group company transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in
the relevant associate Losses may provide evidence of an impament of the asset transferred in which case appropriate provision is made
for imparrment

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impawrment loss

Depraciation 1s charged so as to write off the cost of assets, other than land and properties under construction, over ther estimated useful
Ives, using the straght-ine method, as follows

Freehold land and buldings 50 years
Leasehold improvements over the penod of the lease
Plant and equipment 5 to 25 years

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over ther expected useful Iives on the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter, over
the term of the relevant lease

The gan or loss ansing on the disposal or retrement of an asset 1s determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carmying
amount of the asset and 1s recognised In the profit or loss
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JJB Sports plc

Statement of accounting policies (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Imparmrment of tangible and mtangible assets excluding goodwill and brand hcence intangible assets

At every balance sheet date, a review of the carrying amounts of the tangible and intangible assets, excluding goodwill and brand lcence
intangible assets, 15 performed to determing whether there 15 any indication that those assets have suffered an mparment loss If any such
indication exists, the racoverable amount of the asset 1s estimated In order to determine the extent, If any, of the imparrment loss Where the
asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs

The recoverable amount s the higher of far value less costs to sell and the value in use In assessing the value In use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to thew present value using a discount rate that reflects cument market assessments of the time value of money
and the nsks specrfic to the asset

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) 1s estimated to be less than its camying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset {or cash-generating unit) 1s reduced to s recoverable amount An impairment loss 1s immediately recognised as an expense in the profit
or loss

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrving amount of the asset {or cash-generating untt) 1s increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determuned had no imparment loss been recognised for the asset {or cash-generating unit) n prior years A reversal of an imparment loss 1s
immediately recogrised in the profit or loss

Brand licence intangible assets
All brand licence intangible assets that are internally generated are not recorded on the Balance shest

The Group and Company only cany brand licence intangible assets on the Balance sheet that have been acquired Acquired brands are
carried at cost on the Balance shest Subject to an impairment review, no amortisation 1s charged on those brand licence intangible assets
which the Board believes have an indefinite ife The cost of those brands which have a finite life are amortised over the penod dunng which
the Group and Company has the use of the brand

The Group cames out an impament review on the brand licence intangible assets, at least annually, or when a change in circumstances or
situation indicates that those assets have suffered an impairment loss Imparrment 1s measured by comparing the camyng amount of an
intangible asset with the ‘recoverable amount’ that 1s the higher of its far value less costs to sell and its ‘value n use’ 'Value in use’ 18
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows, using a discount rate based on an estimate of the rate that the market would expect
on an investment of comparable nsk

Inventones

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost compnses direct matenals and, where applicable, those overheads
that have been incurred in bnnging the inventones to thesr present location and condition Cost 1s caloulated using the FIFQ (first in first out)
method Net realisable value represents the estmated selling price less all estmated costs to be incurred in marketing, seling and distnbution
Prowision 1s made for obsolete, slow mowving or damaged tems where appropnate

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly iquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value

Bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the amount of the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs Finance charges,
ncluding premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs, are accounted for on an accrual basis in the profit or loss
using the effective interest rate method and are added to the carmying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the
penod in which they anse

Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it 1s prebable that the Group will be required
1o settle that obligahon Prowvisions are measured at the Duectors' best estimate of the expenditure reguired to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the effect s matenal
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JUB Sports plc

Statement of accounting policies (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008
Share based payments

The Group has applied the requirements of IFRS 2 Share based Payments In accordance with the transional provistons, [FRS 2 has been
appled to all grants of equity instruments after 7 November 2002 that were unvested at 1 January 2005

The Group 1ssues equity-settied share based payments to certan employees Equity-settled share based payments are measured at far value
at the date of grant The far value determined at the date of the grant of the equrty-settled share based payments i1s expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting penod, based on JJB's estimate of shares that will eventually vest

Far value 1s measured by use of a Black-Scholes model The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estmate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restnctions, and behavioural considerations
Revenue recognition

Revenue 18 measured at the far value of the congideration recewed or recesable and represents amounts recenable for goods and services
provided in the nomal course of business, net of discounts, returns, VAT and cther sales related taxes

In the case of goods sold through the retail stores, revenue 1s recognised when goods are sold and the ttle has passed

Revenue also includes income generated from the prowision of sports and leisure facities at the Group's fitness clubs This revenue 1s
recognised n the accounting penod dunng which the facility 1s made avallable to members of the fitness clubs Revenue from joining fees are
contnbuhions to cover casts of the administration of new members and are credited to revenua n the accounting pened of the receipt of that
revenue

Finance income 15 accrued on a tme basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable

Leasing

Leases are classfied as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially alf the nsks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases

The Group as lessor

Rental ncome from operating leases 5 recognised on a straight-kne basis over the term of the relevant lease Inmal direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the camrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-lne basis
over the lease term

The Group as lessee
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged as an expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease

Benefits receved and recevable as an incentrve to enter into an operating lease are also spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Retirement benefit costs

Paymenits to defined contribution retremeant benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due Payments made to State-managed
retirement bensfit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contnbution schemes where the Group’s cbligations under the schemes
are equivalent to those ansing in a defined contrbution retirerment benefit scheme

Forergn currencies

Transactions in currencies other than pounds stering are recorded at the rates of exchange prevaling on the dates of the transactions At
each balance sheet date, monetary assets and habilties that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the exchange rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date Gans and losses ansing on retranslation are recognesed in the Consolfidated incorme statement for the
pencd in which the gain or loss anses except for exchange differences ansing on non-monetary assets and labifities where the changes in
far value are recogrused directly In equity

On consoldation, the assets and 4abirties of the Group's overseas operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet
date Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the accounting period Exchange differences ansing are
classified as equity and transferred to the Group’s foreign currency translation reserve Such translation differences are recognised as income
or expense In the penod In which the operation I1s disposed of Differences ansing from pnor penods have been frozen

Goodwill and far value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and habilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate The Group has efected to treat goodwill and far value adjustments ansing on acquisitions before the date of
transiion to IFRS as sterling-denominated assets and labilities
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JJUB Sports plc

Statement of accounting policies (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Taxation
The taxation expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

The taxation currently payable 1s based upon the taxable profit for the accounting penod Taxable profit differs from ret profit as reported in
the Consolidated income statement because it excludes tems of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and 1t further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Group’s liabilty for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantvely enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carmying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
Financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the balance shest
babiity method Deferred tax habiliies are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
10 the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be avalable against which deductible temporary differences can be utlised Such assets
and habiities are not recogrised ff the temporary difference anses from the nitial recognibon (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and lrabilities n a transaction that affects nether the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

The carmying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 15 calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penod when the liability 1s settled or the asset is realised Deferred
tax 1s charged or credited in the Consolidated income statement, except when it relates to tems charged or credited directly to equity, in
which case the deferred tax s also deaft with in equity

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial llablities are recogrised in the Group’s Balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument

Financial Assets

Investments are recognised and daracognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment 15 under a contract whose terms
require defivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the markst congerned, and are inhally measured at far value, plus
transaction costs, except for those financal assets classified as at far value through profit or loss, which are intially measured at far value

Financial assets are classifisd into the following specified categones financial assets ‘at far vatue through profit or loss’ (FVTPL) ‘avalable-
for-sale’ (AFS) financial assets and ‘loans and recevables’ The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and
1s determined at the time of inital recognition

Effective interest method

The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest Income over the
relevant penod The effective interest rate 15 the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on pomnts pard or
receved that form an integral part of the effective Interest rate, transaction costs and other prermiums or discounts) through the expected Iife
of the financial asset, or, where appropnate, a shorter penod

Income 15 recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets designated as at FVTPL

Financial assots at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL where the financial asset is ether held for trading or it I1s designated as at FVTPL.
A financial asset 1s classified as held for trading f

L) it has been acquired pnncipally for the purpose of seling In the near future, or

L) it 15 a part of an idenirfied portfolio of financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattem of short-
term profit-taking, or

. it 1s & denvatrva that 1s not designated and effective as a hedging instrurnent

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at far value, with any resuftant gain or loss recognised In profit or loss The net gan or loss recognised
In profit or loss incorporates any dwvidend or interest earned on the financial asset Fair value 1s determined in the manner described i note
39(h} In the Notes to the Fnancial statements
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JJB Sports plc

Statement of accounting policies (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Financial instruments {continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (AFS)

Shares held by the Group that are traded in an actve market are classified as being AFS and are stated at far value Gans and losses arnising
from changes in far value are recognised directly in equity in retained earnings Where the nvestment 1s dispoased of or 1s detenmined to be
wmpatred, the cumulative gan or loss previocusly recognised in retained sarrungs s included in profit or loss for the penod

Dradends on AFS equrty instruments are recogrised in profit or koss when the Group's nght to receve the dndends 15 established

Loans and receivables

Trads recenvables, loans, and other recevables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted In an active market are classified
as loans and recenvables Loans and recevables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impaiment
Interest income 1s recogrused by appiying the effective interest rate, except for short-term recenvables when the recognition of interest would
be immatenal

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equvalents compnse cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liguid ;nvestments that are raadily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value

Deracognition of financial assets

The Group derecogrises a financial asset only when the contractual nghts o the cash flows from the asset expire or t transfers the financial
asset and substantally all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity If the Group neither transfers nor retang
substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership and continues {0 control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retaned nterest
in the asset and an associated hatulity for amounts it may have to pay If the Group retains substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds recenved

Financtal izbilties and equrty instruments

Financial labiies and equity instruments arg classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into

Egquity instruments

An equity mstrument & any contract that ewdences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of ts llablites Equity
instruments 1ssued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds receved, net of direct 1Issue cosis

Financial habiliies

financial labiities are classified as either financial labiities 'at FVTPL or ‘other financia! kabilies’

Financial habilthes at FYTPL

Financial lrabilities are classified as at FVTPL where the financial hability 1s esther held for trading or 2t 15 designated as at FVTPL. Financial
habities at FVTPL are stated at far value, with any resultant gan or loss recognised in profit or loss Tha net gan or loss recogrised in profit
or loss incorporates any nterest paid on the financial kabiity

Other financial iabilties

Other financial hatwibies, ncluding borrowings, are intially measured at far value, net of transaction costs Other financial labilties are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis
The effective interest method 18 a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial hability and of allocating interest expense over the
refevant period The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected bife of the
financial hability, or, where appropnate, a shorter penod

Derecognition of financial habiities
The Group derecognises financial liabiliiies when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire
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JJUB Sports plc

Statement of accounting policies {(continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Financial instruments (continued)

Denvative financial instruments

The Group enters into denvative financial Instruments to manage its exposure to foreign exchange rate nsk, which compnse foresgn exchange
forward contracts as set out n note 38(d) in the Notes to the Financial statements

Dervatives are inttially recogrused at farr value at the date a denvalive contract 1s entered nto and are subsequentty remeasured to ther far
value at each balance sheet date The resulting gain or loss 1s recognised n profit or loss immediately

A denvative 18 presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability o the remaming matunty of the instrument 1s more than 12 months
and 1t 15 not expected to be realised or settled within 12 monmths Other denvatives are presented as current assets or current habiliues

Embedded denvatives

Denvatves embedded n other financial instruments or other host contracts are trealed as separate dervatives when ther nsks and
charactenstics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at far value with changes in farr
value recogrised in profit or loss
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JJB Sports plc

Notes to the Financial statements
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

1 General information

JJUB Sports plc 1s a company incorporated in the United Kingdom The address of the registered office 1s given on page 12 of the
Annual report The nature of the Group's operations and its pnncipal actmties are set out in the Business review on pages 4 to 8 of
the Annual report

2 Cntical judgements in applying the Group's and the Company’s accounting policies

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in the Statement of accounting policies on pages 43 to 49,
the Directors are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the camying amounts of assets and llabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical expenence and other
factors that are considered 1o bae relevant Actual resuits may differ from these estimates

The following are the critical judgements that the Directors have made in the process of apphying the Group's accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recogrised in the Financial statements

Impamment of goodwill

The calculation for considenng the impaiment of the carrying amount of goodwill requires a companson of the present vaiue of the
retall operating unis for which goodwill has been allocated, to the value of goodwill In the Consolidated batance sheet The calculation
of present value requires an estimation of the future pre-tax cash flows expected to anse from the retal operating units and the
selection of a sutable discount rate

Following the impairment review, an impairment charge of £178,000 was required in the accounting penod of 52 weeks to 27 January
2008 (2007 £ni) The carrying amount of goodwll in the Consolidated balance sheet at 27 January 2008 was £187,834 000 (2007
£188,459,000)

Impairment of subsidiary undertakings

The calculation for considering the impairment of the carnnng value of subsidiary undertakongs requires a companson of the present
value of the retal operating units within the subsidiary undertakings to the value of thosa subsidiary undertakings in the Company
balance sheet The calculation of present value requires an estimation of the future pre-tax cash flows expected to anse from the retal
operating units and the selection of a sutable discount rate

The carmying amount of subsidiary undertakings in the Company balance sheet at 27 January 2008 was £249,660,000 (2007
£250,447,000) and folowing the impaiment review, no impaiment charge was necessary In the accounting penod of 52 weeks to
27 January 2008 {2007 £nil)

Prownision for restructuring of retail store cham

The Group provided £24,970,000 at 27 January 2008 in respect of the rastructunng of its retall store chain which included a provision
In respect of the costs expected (o be incurred in exiting the lease agreements of the stores which were closed in Apnl 2008 These
costs have been estimated as to the length of time necessary to exit the leases and the scale of any lump sums found to be necessary
0 achieve the ext The estimates are based upon availlable information and knowledge of the property market The ultimate costs to
be incurred n this regard may vary from the estimates

3 Revenue
An analysis of revenue 1$ as follows

52 weeks to 52 weeks to
27 January 28 January

2008 2007
£'000 £'000

Continuing operations
Revenue from retall operations 745,474 754,488
Revenue from fitness clubs 66,280 55,799
811,754 810,287
COther operating income 3,314 5,163
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JJB Sports plc

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

4 Business segments

The Group has adopted IFRS 8 Operating Segments for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 The adoption of IFRS B has resulted in
a change to those business segments which have been disclosed in earlier Consalidated financial statements

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identfied on the basis of mternal reports about components of the Group that are regutarty
reviewed by the Chief Executive to allocate resources to the segments and to assess ther performance The naw segments comprise
(a) all the Group's retall operations including any retail stores which are attached to fitness clubs, and (b) the fitness club operation,
including the indoor soccer centres

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are sst out in the Statement of accounting policies on pages 43 to 49 Segmental
operatng profit represents the profit earned by each segment before central admnistration costs including Directors’ salanes,
excephtional pperating tems, INvestment income, finance costs and the share of results of the associated undertaking

Revenues from major products and services and information about major customers

Information regarding the above 1s required by IFRS 8 (32 and 34) but 15 not grven in these Notes to the Financial statements because
of the natura of the Group's business The Group's two principal actnties, being the retaiing of a wide range of sports clothing,
footwear and equipment and of the operation of fitness clubs, are reported in the segments shown below and therefore the disclosure
of revenues from major products 18 not appropnate and as the Group’s revenus 1s denved frormn sales to the general public, then &t
has no major customers

Geographical segments

The Group's reporting format 1s by business segment Although the Group operates in two geographic segments, the UK and Eire, neither
the revenue from sales to extenal customerss nor the value of net assets within Eire represant more than 10 per cent of Group totals

Operating segments

Information regarding the Group's operating segments 1 reported below Amounts reported for the 52 weeks to 28 January 2007
have been restated to make them consistent with the amounts reported for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Segmental information for
the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

Consolidated ncome statement

Retail Fitness
operatons clubs Consolidated
£'000 £'000 £'000
Revenue 745,474 66,280 811,754
Gross profit 342,403 63,709 406,112
Location net operating expenses before exceptional operating tems {292,968) {46,597) {339,565)
Operating profit before central costs and exceptional operating items 49,435 17,112 66,547
Ceniral administration costs {32,278)
Operating profit before exceptional operating tems 34,269
Exceptional operating tems (22,974}
Operating profit 11,295
Investment income 11,551
Finance costs {12,442)
Share of results of associated undertaking 396
Profit befors taxation 10,800
Taxation (1,170}
Profit after taxation 9,630

5
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

4 Business segments {continued) Segmental iformaton for

Other information the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 {continued}

Head office/

Retail Fitness Distnbution
operations clubs centre Consolidated
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 8,754 14,618 3,905 27,277
Purchase of intangible assets - 14 168 182
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 10,177 6,009 3,333 19,609
Imparment of gocdwill, property, plant and equipment 6,312 - - 6,312
Amortisation of iIntangible assets - 6 1,988 1,994

Consolidated balance sheet

Segmental assets 558,010 108,583 122,955 789,548
Segmental labilities 391,109 30,578 2,806 424,493

Segmental information for
the 52 weeks to 28 January 2007

Conschdated income statement

Retail Fitness
operations clubs Consoldated
£'000 £'000 £'000
Revenue 754,488 55,799 810,287
Gross profif 331,432 53,541 384,973
Location net operating expenses before exceptional cperating items (271,157) (38,765) {309,922)
Cperating profit before central costs and exceptional operating tems 80,275 14,776 75,051
Central administration costs {27.307)
Operating profit before exceptional operating tems 47,744
Exceptional operating dems B,723)
Operating profit 39,021
Investment income 9,437
Finance costs (9,965)
Profit before taxation 38,493
Taxation {12,668)
Profit after taxation 25,825
Other information
Head office/
Retal Fitness Distnbution
operattons clubs centre  Consoldated
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Purchase of property, plant and equpment 9,348 20,119 3,657 33,124
Purchase of intangible assets - 12 18,476 18,488
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 10,544 5,019 2,869 18,432
Amortisation of intangble assets - 1 1,283 1,282
Consolidated balance sheet
Segmental assets 573,326 102,622 96,858 772,806
Segmental labilities 366,373 25,586 3,821 385,780
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

5 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation of the Group has been amived at after charging {credting)

JJB Sports plc

Continuing operations

52 weeks to 52 weeks to

27 January 28 January

2008 2007

£'000 £'000

Amortisation of other intangble assets 1,994 1,282
Dapreciation of property, plant and equipment 19,609 18,432
Net loss on disposal of intangible assets 14 -
Net {gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment {1,996) 1,317
Prowvision for restructunng of retal store chain 24,970 -
Prowvision for the closure of the Icon stores - 3,343
Staff costs (see note §) 128,100 115,345
Auditors’ remuneration (ses balow) 212 208
Cost of inventones recognised as expense 399,382 420,297
Wnte down of Inventones to net realisable value 2,976 3,062
Net foreign exchange losses 1,479 1,197
Net (gan) loss on financial instruments (3,136) 582

The provision for restructuring of the retad) store chain of £24,970,000 relates to the direct expenditure expected to be incurred n
closing the stores which the Group, prior to the year end was commytted to cease trading from before the end of Apnl 2008, following
a review of the existing store portfolio camed out pnor 1o the end of the year The provision compnses staff redundancy costs and
the costs expected to be incurred In exiting the relevant lease agreements which total £18,6858,000, the mpairment of property, plant
and egquipment of £6,134,000 and the mparment of goodwill of £178,000

Charges relating to the closure of the icon stores dunng the 52 weeks to 28 January 2007 of £3,343,000 {a chain of small high street
stores) include losses on the disposal of property, plant and equipment and the costs expected to be incurred in exitng the relevant
lease agreements

Audrtors’ remuneration

Amounts payable to Delotte & Touche LLP and their associates by the Company and its subsidiary undertakings are set out below

52 weeksto 52 weeks to
27 January 28 January
2008 2007

£'000 £'000

Fees payable to the Company’s auditors with respect to the audit of the
Company’s annual accounts 80 72
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and therr associates for other
audit services to the Group
Audit of the Company’s subsidianes pursuant to legislation 45 48

Total audit fees

Non-audit fees

125

120

Corporate finance senvices 45 47
Tax services adwisory services 42 41
Total non-audit fees 87 88
212 208

A descnption of the work of the Audit committee 1s set out in the Corporate governance report on page 21 of the Annual report and
on page 23 there Is an explanation of how auditor objectrty and independence s safeguarded when non-audit services are provided
by the auditors
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008
6 Staff costs

{a) The aggregate remuneration compnsed:

Group Company
52 weeksto 52 weeksto S52weeksto 52 weeksto
27 January 28 January 27 January 28 January

2008 2007 2008 2007

£'000 £°000 £'000 £000

Wages and salanes 119,261 107,654 96,979 865,946
Social secunty costs 8,122 7.211 6,718 5,892
Cther pension costs (see note 40) 334 183 334 183
Share based payments 383 297 383 297
128,100 115,345 104,414 93,318

{b) The average number of persons and their full ime equivalents employed by the Group and Company dunng the
accounting penod (including Executive Directors) was as follows

Group
Average number of employees Full ime equivalents
S52weeksto S52weeksto 52weeksto 52 weeksto
27 January 28 January 27 January 28 January

2008 2007 2008 2007
Number Number Number Number
Sales and distnbution 11,354 11,368 8,147 8,211
Administration 686 649 686 649
12,040 12,017 8,833 8,860
Company
Average number of employees Full time equivalents

S52weeksto 52weeksto 52weeksto 52 weeksio
27 January 28 January 27 January 28 January

2008 2007 2008 2007

Number Number Number Number

Salas and distnbution 8,911 B,768 6,451 6,397
Administration 686 649 686 649
9,597 9,417 7,137 7,046

(c) Key management personnel

The remuneration of the Company’s Directors and of the Associate Dwectors (who are not members of the Board), who are the key
management personnal of the Group, 1s set out below In aggregate for each of the expense categones specifted in 1AS 24 Related
Farty Disciosures Funther information about the remuneration of mdmdual Company Directors 1s prowided in the audited part of the
Directors’ remuneration report on pages 34 to 35

Group and Company
52 weeks to 52 weeks 10
27 January 28 January

2008 2007
£000 £'000
Short-term employee bensfits 3,912 3,656
Post employment benefits 252 128
Termination benefits 1,129 30
Share based payments 190 190
5,483 4,004
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008
7 Investment income Group

52weeksto 52 weeks fo
27 January 28 January

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Interest on bank deposits 925 1,362
Interest on loan note deposit 10,156 8,075
interest on loan to associated undertaking 182 -
Dradend receved from avatable-for-sale investment 288 -
11,551 9,437

Finance income earned on financial assets analysed by category of asset 15 as follows Group

52 weeksto 52 weeksto
27 January 28 January

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Loans and recewvables (ncluding cash and bank balances) 11,263 9,437
Avallable-for-sale investment 288 -
11,551 9,437

8 Finance costs

Group
52 weeks to 52 weeksto
27 January 28 January
2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans 3,335 2,940
Interest on loan notes 9,055 6,975
Finance costs 52 50
12,442 9,965
9 Taxation

The taxation charge shown in the Consolidated income statement for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 has been based on the current
rate of taxation of 30 per cent (2007 30 per cent) for current taxation, and 28 per cent for deferred taxation (2007 30 per cent)

The main rate of corporation ax became 28 per cent on 1 Apnl 2008 As a result of this reduction n the rate of corporation tax the
timing differences will reverse at this rate and the deferred tax habiliies have been calculated accordingly
Group
52 weeksto 52 weeks to
27 January 28 January

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Current taxation
UK corporation tax 459 9,030
Foreign tax 240 207
Adjustment in respect of pnor periods 109 (207
808 9,030
Defarred taxation
Current penod 362 3,638
362 3,638
Taxation charge 1,170 12,668
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

9 Taxation {contmued)

The deferred taxation charge in the current penod has resulted from the depreciation rates on qualfying assets being lower than the
rates of wnhing down allowances used for tax purposes

The taxation charge for the penod can be reconciled to the profit before taxation shown in the Consolidated ncome statement as

foliows
Group
52 weeks to 52 weeks to
27 January 28 January
2008 2007
£'000 % £'000 %

Profit before taxation 10,800 38,493
Tax at the current UK corporation tax rate 3,240 300 11,548 300
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining
taxable profit 237 22 1,624 42
Tax effect of prior year UK corporation tax adjustments 109 10 (207) {0 5)
Tax effect of share of results of associates (119) {11) - -
Effect of dfferent tax rates of subsidianes operating in other
junsdictions {216) {20) (297) {08
Tax effect of change in tax rates (2,081) (19 3) - -
Taxation charge and effective tax rate for the pencd 1,470 108 12,668 329

10 Profit attmbutable to JJB Sports plc

As permitted under Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, no separate Income statement 1S presented in respect of the Parent
Company

The profit after taxation for the accounting penod dealt with in the Financial statements of the Parent Company, JJB Sports ple, was
£235,000 (2007 £14,020,000)

1 Dividends

52weeksto 52 weeksto
27 Januvary 28 January

2008 2007
£'000 £000
Amounts recogrised as distnbutions to eqguity holders in the penod
Final dmdend far the 52 weeks to 28 January 2007 of 7 O pence net per ordinary
share pad on 3 August 2007 (2006 7 O pence) 16,556 16,154
Intenm drnadend for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 of 3 0 pence net per ardinary
share pad on 9 January 2008 (2007 3 0 pence) 7,116 7,084
23,672 23,238
Proposed final dmdend for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 of 7 0 pence net
per ordinasy share (2007 7 0 pence} 16,722 16,530

The proposed final dvidend s subject to approval by shareholders at the 2008 Annual General Meeting and will be payable on
8 August 2008, t has not been included as a hability n these Financial statements
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12, Eamings per share
The calculation of the basic and diluted earmings per ordinary share and of adjusted basic earmings per ordinary share are based on

the following data
52 weeks to 52 weeks to
27 January 27 January
2008 2007
Earnings Earnings
per share per share
£'000 {pence) £°000 (pence)
Earnings for the purposes of basic earmings per ordinary
share and diluted earrings per ordinary share being net
profit attnbutable to equity holders of the parent 9,630 4.07p 25,825 1107p
Exceptional operating tems (net) 22,974 970p 8,723 3 74p
Taxatior: on exceptional operating items (net) (6,806) (288)p {1,398) {0 60)p
Earnings for the purpeses of adjusted basic earnings per
ordinary share being net profit attnbutable to equity holders
of the parent before exceptional operating items, net of taxation 25,798 10 89p 33,150 14 21p
Number of shares Number of ordinary shares
{thousands)
Woeighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of
basic earnings per ordinary share and adjusted basic earnings per ordinary share 236,802 233,261
Effect of diutive potential ordinary shares
Share options 53 51
Waighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of
diluted earrings per ordinary share 236,855 233,312
Basic earmings per ordmary share Pence 407p 11 07p
Diluted earnmngs per ordinary share Pence 407p 11 07p
Adjusted basic earmings per ordinary share Pence 1089p 14 21p

13 Goodwill
Group Company
£'000 £'000

Cost
At 30 January 2008 254,770 255
Additons 2375 -
At 29 January 2007 257,145 2585
Derecognised on release of deferred consideration {786) -
Additions 339 339
At 27 January 2008 256,698 594
Accumulated mpainment losses
At 30 January 2006 and 29 January 2007 68,686 76
Imparment loss for the penod 178 178
At 27 January 2008 68,864 254
Carrying amount
At 27 January 2008 187,834 340
At 28 January 2007 188,458 179
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008
13 Goodwill {[continued)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination 1s allocated at acquasiion 1o the indmdual companies that are expected to benefit from
that business combunabon  After recognition of impaimment losses, the camying amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows

Group
27 January 28 January
2008 2007
£'000 £'000
JJB Sports plc 340 179
Blane Letsure Lmited 181,353 181,353
Sports Dvision (BEireann) Linited 4,552 4,552
Golf TV Limited 1,589 2,375
187,834 188,459

The Group tests goodwill annually for iImpairment, or mors frequently f there are indications that goodwill might be impared The
recoverable amounts of the operating units on which goodwill has ansen are determined from value in use calculations The key
assumptions for the value In use calculations are those regarding the discount rates and growth rates Management estmates
discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the
operating units  The Group prepares cash flow forecasts denved from the pre-tax operating results of the operating units concerned
for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008, and extrapolates cash flows for the remaining lengths of the store leases The growth rate
which s used in the forecasis 1s 3 per cent The remaining length of the leases of some operating units 1s Increased by the anticipated
number of years for which a lease extension may be sought under the statutory nght of renewal as laid down by the Landlord and
Tennant Act This rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets

The pre-tax rate used to discount the cash flow forecasts 1s B 4 per cant (2007 7 6 per cent), which is the pre-tax weighted average
cost of caprtal

The bases and methodology upon which we have determined the value in use 1s based upon our past expenence of the underfying
cash flows 1o those operating units and our views of rates on which the business can grow in the future

The penods of the projected cash flows i1s longer than five years in the cases of those operating units whose prenses are subject to
leases whose remaining lengths extend beyond a pencd of five years

The imparrment loss of £178,000 at 27 January 2008 represents the carnying value of goodwill on a lease relating to one of the retal
stores which has ciosed in Apnl 2008 under the restructunng prowvision, referred to i note 5 of these Notes to the Financial
statements No imparment adjustment was required at 28 January 2007

The accounting judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty involved in assessing any Imparrment loss are referred to in note 2
of these Notes to the Financial statements
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14 Other intangible assets

Group and Company

Other
Brand intangible
hcences assets Total

£'000 £:000 £'000
Cost
At 30 January 2006 10,023 201 10,224
Additions 18 224 264 18,488
At 29 January 2007 28,247 465 28,712
Additions - 182 182
Disposals (153} (20) (173
At 27 January 2008 28,094 627 28,721
Amortisation
At 30 January 2006 - 33 33
Charge for the penod 1,172 110 1,282
At 28 January 2007 1,172 143 1,315
Charge for the penod 1,807 187 1,994
Eiminated on disposal - (&) )]
At 27January 2008 2,979 325 3,304
Carrying amount
At 27 January 2008 25,115 302 25,417
At 28 January 2007 27,075 322 27,397

Included within the cost value of Brand licences at 27 January 2008 s a value of £10,023,000 n respect of the brand nghts to the
use of the “Slazenger” name on certain sports products which are held under a 999 year licence An mparment calculation was
performed to estimale the present value of future cash flows expected to anse from this Brand The key assumptions for this
calculation were based on the gross profit on the sale of preducts which are branded Slazenger, for the 52 weeks to 27 January
2008, extrapolated over the next 15 years assuming no growth and a pre-lax weighted average cost of capttal of 8 4 per cent (2007
7 6 per cent) The penod of the projected cash flows is of a longer penod than 5 years because of tha length of the iicence The
Directors bebeve the Slazenger brand hcence to have a long life therefore no amortisation charge has been made at 27 January 2008
on the grounds of mmatenalty (2007 £nil)

Brand licences at 27 January 2008 also ncluded a cost value of £18,071,000 in respect of the brand nghts to the use of the Glasgow
Rangers FG name on cartain sports products which is being amortised over the 10 year term of the icence on a straight-line basis,
from 7 June 2008

The other intangible assets are amortised over therr estimated useful lives, which 1s an average of 3 years
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15. Property, plant and equipment

Group

Freehold

land and Leasehold Plant and

buildings improvements equipment Total

£'000 £000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 30 January 2006 18,562 20,234 270,514 309,310
Addrions - 558 32,566 33,124
Acquisttion of subsidiary - - 26 25
Exchange differences - - {342) (342)
Disposals {BOB) {180) (8.809) (9.795)
At 29 January 2007 17,756 20,612 293,854 332,322
Addttions - 704 28,573 27,277
Exchange differences - - 1,070 1,070
Disposals - {215) (8.474) (8.689)
At 27 January 2008 17,756 21,101 313,123 351,980
Accumulated depreciation
At 30 January 2006 2,860 3,776 113,452 120,088
Charge for the penod 342 690 17,400 18,432
Exchange differences - - (32} {32)
Elirminated on disposals (123) (117) {4,906} (5,146)
At 29 January 2007 3,079 4,349 125,914 133,342
Charge for the perod 341 764 18,504 19,609
Impairment - 119 6,015 6,134
Exchange differences - - 162 162
Ehminated on disposals ~ (116} (5,423 (5,539)
At 27 January 2008 3,420 5,116 145,172 153,708
Carrying amount
At 27 January 2008 14,336 15,985 167,951 198,272
At 28 January 2007 14,677 16,263 168,040 198,980
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15. Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Company

Freehold

land and Leasehoid Plant and

buildings improvements equipment Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 30 January 2006 18,164 17,087 225,422 261,573
Addtions - 556 31,574 32,130
Transfers to Group companies - - (24} (24)
Disposals (805) (151) {6,608) {7,562)
At 29 January 2007 17,359 18,392 250,366 286,117
Addrtions - 704 25,676 26,380
Transfers to Group companies - - (160) (160)
Disposals - 50) (6,942) (6,992)
At 27 January 2008 17,359 19,046 268,940 305,345
Accumulated depreciation
At 30 January 2006 2,634 2914 88,025 93,573
Charge for the penod 334 604 14,760 15,698
Transfers to Group companies - - 8 8
Eliminated on disposals {123 {106) {3,263) (3,492
At 29 January 2007 2,B45 3,412 99,530 105,787
Charge for the penod 333 682 15,876 16,891
Impairment - 5 5,074 5,079
Transfers to Group companies - - 9 9
Elminated on disposals - (43) (4,131) {4,174)
Ax 27 January 2008 3,178 4,056 116,358 123,502
Carrying amount
At 27 January 2008 14,181 14,990 152,582 181,753
At 28 January 2007 14,514 14,980 150,836 180,330

The Drectors have performed a value in use calculation which has resulied n an wparrnent charge n ihe Group of £6,134,000
representing the carrying values of property, plant and equipment in the retall stores which have been closed in Apnl 2008 as a regult
of the restructuning of the retail store chain, referred to in note 5 of these Notes to the Financial statements  The equvalent impairment
charge for the Company 18 £5,079,000
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18 Investments

{nvestments in subsidianes

Company
£:000

Cost
At 30 January 2006 289,398
Additions 2,137
At 29 January 2007 291,535
Additions 31
Release of deferred consideration {818
At 27 January 2008 290,748
Accumulated provitsion for impairment
At 30 January 2006, 29 January 2007 and 27 January 2008 41,088
Carrying amount
At 27 January 2008 249,660
At 28 January 2007 250,447

Goodwlt of £237,000 which arose on the acquistion of a subsidiary in 1998, was wntten off against reserves in that accounting
penod

The carrying value of investments in subsichary undertakings has been reviewed for imparment at 27 January 2008 This review was
carned out by making a comparnson of the present value of the future pre-tax cash flows of the retal operating units within the
subsidiary undertakings, to the value of those subsidiary undertakings in the Company Balance sheet A discount rate was used that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and a weighted average cost of capital of 8 4 per cent {2007 7 6 per
cent} Following the impasrment review, no imparment charge was found to be necessary at 27 January 2008 (2007 £n)

The accounting [udgements and sources of estimation uncertanty involved In assessing any impairment prowision are referred toin
note 2 of these Notes to the Financial staterments

Details of the investments in subsidianes whose results or financial position principally affect these Financial statements is as follows

Place of Issued share
incorporation capital held  Activity

Blane Leisure Limited Scotland 100% Retailer of sportswear and sports equipment

Spors Dvision (Eireann) Limited Eire 100% Retaler of sportswear and sports equipment

Golf TV Limited Engtand 100% Singte interest telewision broadcaster, concentrating on golf
TV Sports Shop Lmited England 100% Direct response marketing of golf and fitness products

{formerly Golf TV Pro-Shop Limited)

Dormant and non-trading companies are not listed in the above table
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17. investment in associated undertaking

On 14 June 2007, the Company acquired 48 per cent of the issued share caprtal of KooGa Rugby bmited ("KooGa"), a company
incorporated m England, for a consideration of £1,281,000 The business activity of KooGa ts the manutacture of sporting apparel,
pnncipally for rugby

The Group uses the equity method of accounting for associated undertakings At 27 January 2008 the vestment in the associated
undertaking 1s as follows

£'000
Consideration 1.281
Far value of net liabilbes acgured 251
Goodwill on acquisition 1,532
Group share of net assets at 27 January 2008 145
Investment in associated undertaking 1,677
Loan to associated undertaking 4,000

The Group’s 4B per cent share of KooGa's assets, liabilities and results {post becoming an associated undertaking) as shown in thew
management accounts 1s as follows

At

27 January

2008

Group share of £'000
Total assets 3,587
Total labies 3,442
Net assets 145
Revenus 4,388
Profit after taxation 308

KooGa has a co-terminous year end with JUB Thers are no signfficant restnctions on the ability of the associated undertaking to
transfer funds to its shareholders, other than those imposed by legal requiremants The camying value of the investment in the
assocuated underaking inchudes acquired goodwall

If the Company had acqurred rts 48 per cent interest in KooGa on 29 January 2007 {the first day of the financial yaar), the profit afier
taxation would have been £13,000

18 Inventonies
Group Company
27 January 28 January 27 January 28 January
2008 2007 2008 2007
£'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
Goods for resale 114,984 128,082 96,109 167,725

The net repiacernent value of inventories 15 not considered to be matenally different from that stated in the Balance shests
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18 Trade and other receivables

Group Company
27 January 28 January 27 January 28 January
2008 2007 2008 2007
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade recewables 6,181 10,379 3,457 8,634
Allowance for doubtfut debts {889) {1,398) (745) (1,152)
5,292 8,981 2,712 7.482
Cther recevables and prepayments 37,566 29,224 30,334 23,409
Amounts owed by subsidiary underiakings - - 5,479 7,290
Gain on forward foreign exchange contracts (see note 39 a} 2,554 - 2,554 -
45,412 38,205 42,079 38,181

No nterest 1s charged on any trade recenvables that are overdue A provision has been made for the estmated irrecoverable armounts
ncluded In trade recevables This provision has been determined by reference 1o past default expenence and knowledge of the
indndual arcumstances of certain debtors

Before accepting any new customer, the Group and Company perform credit checks and review trade references in order to assess
the potential customer’s credit quality and then defines credit mits by iIndmdual custorner Credit nisk 1s managed on a regular basis
In order to mintmise the exposure by reviewing adherence to settlement terms Credit Imits and terms are only increased based on
past settlements

In determining the recoverability of any trade recevables, the Group considers any change In the credit quality of the trade recenvablas
trom the date credt was intially granted up to the end of the accounting penod The concentration of credit nsk 1s mited due to the
vaned customer base

Dunng the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008, special precautions were taken to minimise the credit nsk associated with gift voucher
companies as a result of trading expenence with other such companies In earlier years

The ageing of trade recervables are as follows

Group Company
27 January 28 January 27 January 28 January

2008 2007 2008 2007

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Neither past due nor imparred
0-30 days 4,052 4722 1,653 3,757
Past due but not impared
30-60 days 473 3,758 376 3,168
60-90 days 118 103 101 102
90-120 days 100 - 45 -
120+ days 549 398 537 455
Past due and impawred
30-60 days - 3 - a
60 90 days - 1 - -
90-120 days 10 - 10 -
120+ days 879 1,394 735 1,146

6,181 10,379 3,457 8,634
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19 Trade and other recervables {continued)

Of the trade recernvables for the Group, B5 6 per cent (2007 45 5 per cent) and for the Company 47 8 per cent {2007 43 5 per cent}
are netther past due nor imparred

Included in trade recevables at 27 January 2008 are debtors with a carrying amount for the Group of £1,240,000 (2007 £4,259,000}
and for the Company of £1,059,000 {2007 £3,725,000) which are past due at that date, for which the Group has not made any
provision for an mecoverable amount because there has not been a significant change in credit qualty and the amounts are st
considered recoverable The Group does not hold any coltateral over these balances

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts are as follows

Group Company

27 January 28 January 27 January 28 January

2008 2007 2008 2007

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at the beginning of the penod 1,398 1,919 1,152 1,552
Amounts wntten off as uncollectible {521) B21) {416) (400)
Impairment prowsion created dunng the year 12 - 9 -
Balance at the end of the penod 889 1.398 745 1,152

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are indvidually imparred trade recervables with a balance for the Group of £749,000
(2007 £851,000) and for the Company £614,000 {2007 £699,000) which have been ptaced under liquidation The impaiment which
has been recognised, represents the difference between the carming amount of these trade recevables and the present valus of the
expected iquidation proceeds The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances

20 Current asset imvestments

Group and Company
27 January 28 January

2003 2007
£'000 £'000
Availlable-for-sale investment carried at farr value
Shares 28,100 -
Loans and receivables
Loan note deposit 168,117 168,117
196,217 168,117

The Shares represent a non-controling nterest of 10 12 per cent N the 1ssued share capital of Umbro Ple purchased for strategic
purposes These shares were not hald for trading and accordingly are classified as avalable for sale The far value of these shares
18 based upon ther quoted market pnce at 27 January 2008 The purchase pnce of these shares was £26,545,000 and the far value
adjustment taken directly to equity dunng the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 was £1,555,000

The Loan note depasit represents a bank balance which acts as secunty for the Loan notes which are included within Current liabiliies
in the Balance sheet and described in note 23 of these Notes to the Financial statements Interest s receved on the Loan note
deposit at an interest rate of 10 bps below LIBOR
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21 Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
27 January 28 January 27 January 28 January
2008 2007 2008 2007
£'000 £°000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 10,692 23,056 9,076 10,165
Short term deposits 3,507 510 3,507 510
14,199 23,566 12,583 10,675

Short term deposits are made for varying penods of between 1 day and 1 month depending on the cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at market short-term deposit rates

The carrying amount of these assets approximatas to thetr fair value

22 Trade and other payables

Group Company
27 January 28 January 27 January 28 January
2003 2007 2008 2007
{Restated) (Restated)
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade payables 24,352 41,601 21,523 38,912
Other payables and accruals 71,506 60,374 58,939 47,580
Detarred lease incentives (see note 26) 2,303 1,988 2,080 1,665
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakungs - - 192,178 168,319
Loss on forward foreign exchange contracts (see note 39 a) - 582 - 582
Value added tax 11,015 6,961 7,304 3,886
Payroll and social securrty taxes 1,698 2,002 1,668 1.970
110,874 113,509 283,692 262,914

Trade payables principally compnise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs The average credit period taken
for trade purchases Is 27 days (2007 26 days)

As regards most suppliers, no mterest 1s charged on the trade payables outstanding balances The Group has financial nsk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables are pawd within the credit timeframe

The Directors consider that the camying amount of trade payables approximates to therwr far value

The Balance sheets at 28 January 2007 have been restated by reclassifying taxes, other than Corporation tax, amounting to
£8,963,000 for the Group and £5,856,000 for the Company, to “Trade and other payables”, they had previously been included with
Corporation tax in “Tax hahilities™ The Directors consider the reclassification to be a mors appropnate presentation
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23. Borrowings
Group Company

27 January 28 January 27 January 28 January
2008 2007 2008 2007
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Borrowings
Loan notes 168,117 168,117 168,117 168,117
Bank loans 56,355 32,812 56,355 32,812
224,472 200,929 224,472 200,929

Total borrowings

Amount dus for settlement within 12 months 168,117 168,117 168,117 168,117
Amount due for settlement after 12 menths 56,355 32,812 56,355 32,812

All Group and Company bank overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes are based n sterling

Loan notes were 1ssued to the vendors of Blane Leisure Limited (Sports Dmision) in September 1998, as part of the consideration for
the acquisition of that Company and ts subsidianes, under an instrument which provided that the Loan notes were redeemable on
any quartery interest payment dates after 11 June 1999 By a Deed of Vanahon dated 26 February 2001, the maturty date up to
which the Loan notes can be redeemed was extended to 28 Apnl 2011

Interest 15 payable on the Loan notes at a rate of 75 bps below LIBOR and the Loan notes are secured by an rdentical amount held
In a bank account and shown under Current assets as “Cument asset investments”, as descnbed in note 20 of these Notes to the
Financial staternents

The Group’s working caprtal 1s provided through a 5 year £60 million revoiving bank credit facility which commenced in June 2005,
and a 6 year term loan of £18 million, which commenced in June 20086, 1n order to finance the acquistion of the Glasgow Rangers
FC heensing agreement The revoving bank credt facility cames an interest rate at 45 bps above UBOR The term loan cames an
nterest rate of 40 bps above LIBOR Both faciities expose the Group to farr value interest rate nsk

The Drectors sstimate the far value of the Group and Company's borrowings 10 be the same as therr carrying value
The weighted average interest rate paid by both Group and Company was as follows

Group and Company
S52weeksto 52 weeksto
27 January 28 January

2008 2007

% %

Loan notes 51 43
Bank loans 68 59

Undrawn borrowing facilihes

At 27 January 2008, the Group had an undrawn committed borrowng faciity of £20 million {2007 £45 million), in respect of which
all conditions precedent had been met
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24 Provisions

Current habiihies
Vacant stores  Retall store
prowision restructuring Dilapidations Legal penalty

{Restated) provision provision provision Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Group
At 28 January 2007 3,258 - 1,176 7.945 12,380
Created in the penod 832 18,858 730 - 20,220
Utilsed in the penod (1,537) - (462) (7,945) {9,944
At 27 January 2008 2,554 18,658 1,444 - 22,656
Company
At 29 January 2007 2,374 - 1,059 7,945 11,378
Created in the penod 634 14,543 690 - 15,867
Utiised in the penod {1.078) - {3B5) {7,945) (9,388
At 27 January 2008 1,930 14,543 1,384 - 17,857

Non-current kabilities
Vacant stores

provision
(Restated)
£'000
Group
At 29 January 2007 897
Created in the penod 1,740
Utiised in the penod 333
At 27 January 2008 2,304
Company
At 29 January 2007 407
Created in the penod 1,668
Uthised in the period (248)
At 27 January 20038 1,829

There has been a reclassification at 28 January 2007 of provisions payable after more than one year to “Non-current kabilities™ of
£887,000 ior the Group and £407,000 for the Company, which were previously included within “Current habilities” in the Balance
shests The Directors consider this reclassification to be a more appropriate presentation

The vacant stores provisions represent the estimated costs expected to be incurred 10 exiting the relevant lease agreements Included
within this 15 the provision for the closure of the lcon stores created at 28 January 2007 and referred to in note 5 of these Notes to
the Financial statements

The retail store restructunng provision relates to the direct expenditure expected to be incurmed in closing the stores which the Group,
pror to the year end, was committed to cease trading from before the end of Aprl 2008, fellowing a review of the existing store
portfoho camed out prior to the end of the year The provision compnses staff redundancy costs and the costs expected to be
incurred 1IN exiting the relevant lease agreements and is refered to in note 5 of these Notes to the Financial statements The
accounting judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty involved i assessing this provision are referred to in note 2 of these
Notes to the Financial staterments
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24 Provisions {continued)

The diapidations prowision 1s the best estimate of the present value of expenditure expected to be incurred by the Group and
Company in order 10 restore iis leasehold prermises to the condition required under the indmidual lease agreements at the end of therr
term

The provision in respect of the legal penalty and related interest of £7,945,000 at 28 January 2007 related to the action brought
aganst the Company by the Office of Farr Trading (“OF T} in respect of the price-fiung of certan replica kit products dunng 2000 and
2001 and has besn utiised dunng the 52 weeks to 27January 2008 by the payment of that amount to the OFT

Current abilty provisions are expected to be settled during the 52 weeks to 25 January 2009, the non-current hability provisions are
expected to be settled within a further 12 months of this date

25 Deferred tax habiliies

The following are the major deferred tax labilities recognised by the Group and Company and movements thereon

Group Company
£'000 £'000
Accelerated caprtal allowances

At 30 January 2006 19,785 19,327
Charge for the penod 3,638 3,588
Exchange differences (7} -
At 29 January 2007 23,416 22,913
Charge for the penod 362 535
Exchange differences 24 -
Deferred tax on itarmns taken directly to equity 435 435
At 27 January 2008 24,237 23,883

The Group and Company has no deferred tax asset (2007 same)

26 Deferred lease incentives
Group Company

27 January 28 January 27 January 28 January
2003 2007 2008 2007
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Current habilities, to be released within 1 year (see note 22) 2,303 1,989 2,080 1,665
Non-cutrent habiities, to be refeased after maore than + year 39,850 38,627 36,896 35,613

Deferred lease incentves compnse inducements given by landlords to enter into operating leases of certan land and buildings Al
ncentives receved are released to the Consolidated income statement on a straight Iine basis over the term of the indmdual lease
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27 Share caprtal

Authonsed and i1ssued share capital
Group and Company
27 January 28 January

2008 2007
£'000 £'006
Authorsed:
331,600,000 ordinary shares of 5p each 16,580 16,580

Group and Company
Number
£'000 Thousands

Allotted, called up and fully paid

At 30 January 2006 1,538 230,767
Scrp 1ssue n heu of dividend 262 5,228
Issued on creation of Long term incentive plan 85 1,696
Issued on exercise of options 7 148
At 28 January 2007 11,892 237,837
Scnp i1ssue in beu of dmvdend 1 24
Issued on exercise of options 51 1,027
At 27 January 2008 11,944 238,888

The Company has one class of ordinary shares and these carry no aght to fixed income

28 Share based payments

{a) Share optron schemes

The Company has outstanding options under the following schemes

Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares of 5p  shares of 5p Exercise
each at each at pnce per Exercise
27 January 28 January share expiry
Date of Grant 2008 2007 (pence) date
[ 1999 Unapproved scheme 17 February 1999 70,080 1,049,280 184 84p 16 02 09
13 Novermber 2000 60,000 60,000 20517p 121110
30 January 2001 120,000 120,000 260 25p 2901 11
16 Apnl 2001 413,516 413,516 370 00p 1504 11
12 October 2002 250,000 250,000 150 20p 111012
26 May 2004 650,000 650,000 253 00p 250514
23 November 2004 832,401 832,401 200 75p 221114
(i} 1899 Inland Revenue Approved scheme 18 May 1999 15,800 63,200 189 84p 170509
16 Apnl 2001 186,484 186,484 370 00p 1504 11
23 Novermber 2004 493,119 493,119 200 75p 221114
(i) 2006 Unapproved scheme 28 July 2006 4,038,381 4 038,381 176 92p 2707 16
13 Novemnber 2007 656,019 - 154 34p 121117
{iv) 2006 Long term incentive plan 3 August 2006 1,695,712 1,685,712 - 0407 11
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28. Share based payments (continued)

(a) Share option schemes (continued}

The exercise of options under the 19538 Unapproved scheme, the 1899 Infand Revenue Approved scheme and the 2008 Unapproved
scheme are subject to performance conditions that require vanous specified growths in earnings per ordinary share over a three year
pencd In respect of the 2006 Long term incentve plan, one tranche of the award 1 subject to an earnings per orcinary share
performance target, and the second equal tranche 1s subject to a total sharshelder return performancs target

The details of options granted to the Executive Directors under all these schemes, are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report
on page 35 of the Annual report and are included in the above figures

Under the transmonal provisions, the recognition and measurement pnnciples in IFRS 2 have not been applied to grants of share
options made before 7 November 2002 The far value of options granted since 7 Novernber 2002 1s measured using the Black
Scholes pncing model

The number and weighted average exercise price of the sharg options is as follows

52 weeks to 52 weeks to

27 January 2008 28 January 2007
Wenghted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
Number of price Number price
options {pence) of ophons (pence)
QOutstanding at the start of the penod 9,852,003 167 72p 4,264,540 226 80p
Granted dunng the penod 656,019 154 34p 5,734,093 122 78p
Exercised during the penod {1,026,600} 18507p (146,540} 187 54p
Cutstanding at the end of the penod 9,481,512 164 86p 9,852,093 167 72p
Exercisable at the end of the penod 85,880 185 75p 1,112,480 18512p

The options outstanding at 27 January 2008 have an exercise price In the ranga of £rd to 370 0 pence and a weighted average
remaining contracted lfe of 6 7 years

The share pnce dunng the accounting penod of 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 ranged between 92 50 pence and 302 25 pence and
the closing mid market price at Friday 25 January 2008 was 112 50 pence

The total charge to the Consolidated income statement for the 52 weeks t0 27 January 2008 relating to employese share based
payments was £383,000 (2007 £297,000)
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28 Share based payments {contimued)

(a) Share option schemes (continued)

The farr value of options granted dunng the penod, have been calculated using the Black-Scholes pricing madel assuming the inputs

shown below
52 weeks to 52 wesks to
27 January 28 January
2008 2007
Farr value at measurernent date per option (pence) 42p 27p
Share pnce at date of grant {pence) 158p 180p
Exercise price (pence) 154 34p 176 92p
Expected volatlity {pence) 57 37p 24 76p
Expected option Iife {years} 2.8 years 2 5 years
Expected dwvidend yield (per cent} 8 9% 388%
Risk free interest rate {per cont) §5% 525%

The expected volatiity of every option is based upon the standard dewation of the Company's share data about the Mean, in respect
of share price movements dunng the previous accounting penod The expected option Ife 1s the average penod to exercise The nsk
free interest rate 1s based upon the Bank of England base borrowing rate

(b} 2007 Sharesave plan

Dunng the accounting penod of 52 weeks to 27 January 2008, the Group offered options to all employees with over 12 manths'
servica to purchase ordinary shares under its new 2007 Sharesave plan This Plan 1s an Inland Revenue approved Save As You Eam
{*SAYE") savings contract Inland Revenue rules limit the maxmum amount saved under the savings contract to £250 per month The
options were offered at a fixed set pnce calculated at the start of the 3 or 5 years term of the SAYE savings contract by applying a
discount of 20 per cent to the market price of JUB's ordinary shares in September 2007 The ophions under the Sharesave plan may
normally be exercised dunng the penod of 6 months afier the completion of the 3 or 5 year term of the SAYE savings contract There
ars no performance conditions attached to these options

Weighted

average

Number of axercise

options price

QOutstanding at 29 January 2007 - -
Granted on 3 October 2007 1,167,675 169.00p
Forfeited {56,605) 169.00p
Cutstanding at 27 January 2008 1,111,070 169.00p

At 27 January 2008, the options under the Sharesave plan compnsed 756,065 ordinary shares with an option expiry date of
1 November 2010 and 355,005 ordinary shares with an option expiry date of 1 November 2012

The details of options under the 2007 Sharasave plan taken up by the Executive Directors are set out in the Directors’ remuneration
report on page 35 of the Annual report

29 Share premium account
Group and
Company
£'000
Balance at 30 January 2006 157,219
Premium ansing on 1ssue of equity shares 12,115
Balance at 29 January 2007 169,334
Premium ansing on issue of equity shares 1,914
Balance at 27 January 2008 171,248
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30. Capital redemption reserve

Group and

Company

£'000

Balance at 30 January 2006, 28 January 2007 and 27 January 2008 1,069
3 Investment in own shares

Group and

Company

£'000

Balance at 30 January 2006 -

Issued on the creation of Long term incentive plan 3,083

Balance at 28 January 2007 and 27 January 2008 3,083

The invastment In own shares represents the cost of 1,695,712 ordinary shares in the Company purchased in the market in August
2006 at 181 B3 pence and held by the JJB Sporis plc Employee Benefit Trust to be used to satisfy options granted under the Group's
Long Term Incentive Plan, see note 28a of these Notes to the Financial statements

32. Share based payment reserve

Group and

Company

£000

Balance at 30 January 2006 -
Created In the penod 297
Balance at 29 January 2007 297
Created in the penod 383
Balance at 27 January 2008 680

The Share based payment reserve represents the Directors’ opinion of the far value of options granted after 7 November 2002, see
note 28a of these Notes to the Financial statements

3 Foreign currency transiabion reserve

Group

£'000

Balance at 30 January 2006 24
Exchangs differences on transtation of foreign operations 163
Balance at 29 January 2007 187
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (1,398)
Balance at 27 January 2008 {1,211)
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34 Retained earnings

Group Company

£°000 £'000

Balance at 30 January 2006 194,743 76,153
DOnidends pad {23,238) {23,238
Profit after taxation for the penod 25,825 14,020
Balance at 29 January 2007 197,330 66,935
Dmdends pad (23672) (23.672)
Gain on revaluation of avalable-for-sale investment taken to equity 1,555 1,556
Taxaton effect on item taken directly to equity {435) (435)
Profit after taxation for tha penod 9,630 235
Balance at 27 January 2008 184,408 44,618

35 Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash from operating activities
Group

52weeks to 52 weeks to

27 January 28 January

2008 2007

£'000 £°000

Operating profit from continuing operations 11,295 39,01
Impairment of goodwall 178 -
Amortisation of other intangible assets 1,994 1,282
Depreciation of property, plant and equiprment 19,609 18,432
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 6,134 -
Net loss on disposal of intangible assets 14 -
Net (gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment {1,996) 1,317
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment refating to the closurs of Icon stores - 1.376
Release of deferred considaration relating to a subsidiary 818 -
Increase In provisions 11,683 5,947
Share based payment reserve 383 297
Operating cash flow before movements in working capital 50,112 67,672
Decrease (increase) in Inventones 13,098 (7,432)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other recevables (7,207) 1,825
(Decrease) increase 1n payables (1,312) 21,118
Cash generated by operations 54,691 83,183
Taxation paid (8,342) (2,844)
Net cash from operating activities 46,349 80,339
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35. Reconcihation of operating profit to net cash from operating activities (continued)

Company
52 weeks to 52 weeksto
27 January 28 January

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Cperating (loss) profit from continuing operations (640} 22,512
Impairment of goodwall 178 -
Amortisation of other intangible assets 1,994 1,282
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 16,891 15,698
Impatrment of property, plant and equipment 5,079 -
Net loss on disposal of intangible assets 14 -
Net {gan) loss on disposal of property, plant and eguipment (496) 240
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment refating to the closure of Icon stores - 1,376
Release of deferred consideration relating to a subsiciary 818 -
Increase i provisions 7,901 6,440
Share based payment reserve 393 297
Operating cash flow before movements in working caprtal 32,132 47,845
Decrease (increase) in inventones 11,616 (7,438}
(Increase) decrease In trade and other recenvables {3,898) 984
Increase In payables 22 221 56,793
Cash generated by operations 62,071 98,184
Taxation (pad) receved {5,784) 1,335
Net cash from operating activities 56,287 99,519
36 Analysis of net debt as at 27 January 2008
Group
At Other At
29 January Cash non-cash 27 January
2007 flow tems 2008
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Current asset investment
Loan note deposit 168,117 - - 168,117
Gash and cash equivalents 23,566 (7,061) (2,306) 14,199
191,683 {7.061) {2.306) 182,316
Current hability
Loan notes (168,117} - - {168,117)
Non-current ability
Bank loans (32,812 (23,500) (43) {56,355)
(8,246) (30,561) {2,349} (42,156)
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36 Analysis of net debt as at 27 January 2008 (continued)

Company
At Other At
29 January Cash non-cash 27 January
2007 flow tems 2008
£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000
Current asset investment
Loan note deposit 168,117 - - 168,117
Cash and cash equivalents 10,675 1,808 - 12,583
178,792 1,908 - 180,700
Current hability
Loan notes (168,117) - - (168,117)
Non-current liabihity
Bank loans (32.812) {23,500) 43) (56,355)
(22,137 {21,592) (43) 43,772)
37 Caprtal commnitments
Group Company
27 January 28 January 27 January 28 January
2008 2007 2008 2007
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Capital commitments 50,000 39,000 50,000 39,000

Capital commitments represent anticipated costs in respect of additions to property, plant and equipment on leasehold properties on
which legal contracts have been exchanged at the balance sheet dates
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38.

Operating lease arrangements

(a) The Group and Company as lessee

The Group and the Company have entered into non-cancellable operating leases in respect of certan land and buildings The rentals
charged to the Group for the accounting penod were £94,782,000 (2007 £93,032,000) and for the Company were £72,119,000
(2007 £69,906,000) In addition all insurance, mantenance and repars are paid on these properties

The Group and the Company have entered Into non-cancellable operating leases In respect of plant and equipment The annual
rentals charged to the Group for the accounting penod were £3,949,000 {2007 £3,440,000) and for the Company were £3,735,000
{2007 £3,214,000)

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases, which fall due as follows

Land and Land and Plant and Plant and
buildings buildings equipment equiprment
27 January 28 January 27 January 2B January
2008 2007 2008 2007
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Group
Operating leases which expire
Within 1 year 92,418 88,403 2,429 2,241
In the second to fifth years inclusive 360,674 346,923 3,130 2,882
After 5 years 823,442 816,766 - -
1,276,534 1,252,092 5,559 5,123
Company
Operating leases which expire
Within 1 year 71,267 66,157 2,429 2,161
In the second 1o fifth years inclusive 278,491 260.597 3,130 2,769
After § years 668,217 633,773 - -
1,017,975 960,527 5,559 4,930

Qutstanding commitments for future mimum leasa payrnents on land and buldings represent future rentals payable by the Group
for stand-alone retall stores and combined fitness clubs/superstores Stand-alone retal store leases have an average initial term of
15 years whilst leases for combined fitness clubs/superstores have an average initial term of 25 years Rentals under these property
leases are usually fixed for an average of 5 years No provision within the outstanding commitments has been made for any increase
in costs anasing from future rent reviews

Included in the outstanding commitments for fture minmum lease payments on land and buildings are commitments relating to the
leases on those retailt stores which have been closed in Apnl 2008 as a result of the restructunng of the retail store chain, referred to
n note 5 of these Notes to the Financial statements

{b) The Group and Company as lessor

The leases on certain stand-alone retail stores which are no longer operated by the Group, have been sub-let to third pares The
property rental Income receved dunng the accounting penod for the Group was £2,644,000 {2007 £2,512,000) and for the Company
was £1,158,000 (2007 £1,279,000) The Group's sub-let properties have average remaning lease commitments of 8 years

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracts with sub-tenants for the following future minimum lease rentals

Group Company

27 January 28 January 27 January 28 January
2008 2007 2008 2007
£'000 £°000 £'000 £000

Operating leases which expire
Within 1 year 2118 2,228 810 1,069
In the second to fifih years inclusive 6,972 8,122 2,132 3,500
After 5 years 6,346 8,900 1,887 2,939
15,436 19 250 4,829 7,508
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008
39 Financial instruments

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted including the critena for recognition, the basis of measurement
and the basis on which income and expense are recognised, In respect of each class of financial asset, financial liabiity and equity
instruments are disclosed in the Statement of accounting policies on pages 47 to 49 of these Financial statements

{a) Categones of financial mstruments

Group Company
27 January 28 January 27 January 28 January
2008 2007 2008 2007
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financial assets
Investments i subsidianes - - 249,660 250,447
Farr value through profit and loss — held for trading 2,554 - 2,554 -
Loans and recewvables 210,975 206,322 207,642 206,298
Cash and cash equivalents 14,199 23 566 12,583 10,675
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 28,100 - 28,100 -
Financial abilities
Far value through profit and loss ~ held for trading - 582 - 582
Amortised cost 335,346 313,856 508,164 463,261

The financial iability dealt with through profit and loss of £582,000, which was the anticipated future loss on financial Instruments at
28 January 2007, had changed to being a financial asset of £2,554,000, which was an anticipated futura profit on financial
instruments at 27January 2008 and resulted in a net gain in profit and loss of £3,136 000

{b) Financial nsk management objectives

The Group's and Company's Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and
international financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group and Company through
internal nsk reparis which analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of nsks These nsks include market nsk {including currency
nsk, interest rate nsk and pnce nsk), credit nsk, hquidity nsk and cash flow interest rate sk

The Group and Company seeks to minimise the effects of these nsks by using dervative financial Instruments to hedge its currency
nsk exposure The use of financial denvatives 1s governed by the Group's and Company's pohcies approved by the Board of Directors,
which provide wntten pnnciples on foreign exchange nsk, interest rate risk, credit nsk, the use of financial denvatrves and non-financial
mstruments, and the investment of excess lquidty Compliance with policies and exposure imits ts reviewed on a continuous basis
The Group and Company does not enter Into or trade financial instruments, including dervative financial Instrumeants, for speculative
purposes

{c) Market nsk

The Group's and Company’s activties expose It pnmanly to the financial nsks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and
interest rates The Group and Company enters into denvative financial instruments to manage ts exposure to foreign currency nsk
by forward forexgn exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rate nsk ansing on the purchase of inventory in US dollars

There has been no change to the Group’s and Company's exposure to market nsks or the manner in which it manages and measures
the nsk
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

39 Financial mstruments {continued)

{d) Foreagn currency nsk management

The Group and Company undertakes certain transactions denominated in US dollars and therefore has exposure to exchange rate
fluctuations Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters utiising forward foreign cumency exchange
contracts

The camying amounts of the Group's and Company's foreign curency denominated monstary assets and monetary habdities are as

follows
Group

Assets Liabilities
27 January 28 January 27 January 28 January
2008 2007 2008 2007
£'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
US dollars 3,674 1,968 84 480
Euros 955 5,523 485 112

Company

Assets Liabilities
27 January 28 January 27 January 28 January
2008 2007 2008 2007
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
US dollars 3,674 1,968 84 480
Euros 356 1,420 - -

Forewgn exchange

Whilst the mayonty of the Group's and Company's trading activities are conducted with United Kingdom suppliers and customers with
the transactions being payable and recevable In stering, there are approximatsly £50 milion of the Group's and Company's
annuahsed purchases settled in US dollars It s the policy of the Group and Company to enter into forward foreign exchange
contracts to manage the nsk assoctated with the purchase of inventory in US dolars The Group's and Company's Treasury
department tracks the stering/dollar exchange rate on a continuous basis in order to mMinimise and protect the Group's and
Company's nsk to currency fluctuations Dunng the 52 weeks 10 27 January 2008 the Group and Company entered into a senes of
forward contracts which covered its dollar requirements through to December 2009, at fixed rates of exchange

A current asset has been created at 27 January 2008 of £2,554,000 (2007 cumrent hability £582,000) bemng the elernent of the gan
ansing from the difference between the sterling value of forward foregn exchange contracts and their farr value, that s not already
committed to suppliers

At the balance sheet date, the total amount of cutstanding forward foreign exchange contracts that the Group and Company is
committed to are as follows
Group and Company
27 January 28 January

2008 2007
US dollars £'000 £'000
Forward foreign exchange contracts 103,704 34,486

* JJUB Sports ¢ Retall stores » Fitness clubs ® Serious about sport » JJB Sports ® Retall stores  Fitness cluk

79




JJB Sporis plc

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
For the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

3¢ Financial mstruments {continued)

(d) Foresgn cumrency nsk management {continued)
Foreign currency sensrtivity analysis

The US dotlar 1s the pnncipal foreign currency to which the Group and Company is exposed The following table detalls the Group’s
and Company's sensitvty to a 10 per cent increase and decrease in the rate of steding aganst the rate of the US dollar which
represents a reasonable possible change in foreign currency rates The sensitrity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary tems and adjusts therr translation at the end of the accounting peniod for a 10 per cent change in foreign
currency rates A positve number shown below Indicates an increase in profit whera the rate of stering strengthens 10 per cent
aganst the rate of the US dollar For a 10 per cent waakernuing of the rate of stering against the rate of the US dollar, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the profit, and the number below would be negative

US dollar currency impact
Group and Company
27 January 28 January

2008 2007
£°000 £'000
Profit on the rate of sterling strengthening by 10 per cent 14,169 2,986
Loss on the rate of sterling weakening by 10 per cent (7,480) (3,836)

The Group’s and Company's sensitivity to foreign currency has increased dunng the curment accounting penod due fo the increase in
the value of forward foreign exchange contracts

{e) Interest rate nsk management

The Group and Company finances its operations through the 5 year revolving bank credit facility, 6 year term loan and its retaned
profit. The revolving bank credit facility and the term loan were arranged at interest rates fixed 1o UBOR and therefore the Group and
Company 1s exposed to interest rate nsk on these borrowings  No interest rate hedging agreement s currently in place because gven
the level of borrowings and the current interest rate environment, the Board does not consider fluctuations in intarest rates to pose
a significant nsk o the Group and Company

The Group's and Company’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial habilities are detaled in the lquidity nsk
management section of this Note to the Financial statements

if mterest rates on the financial assets and financial kabifties had been 50 bps tugher and all other vanables were held constant, the Group's
profit for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 would have decreased by £105,000 {2007 decreased by £57,000) and for the Company tt
would have decreased by £108,000 (2007 decreased by £60,000) If nterest rates had been 50 bps lower and all other vanables were
held constant, the Group's profit for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 would have Increased by £105,000 (2007 increased by £57,000)
and for the Company 1t would have increased by £108,000 (2007 increased by £60,000) This is attnbutable to the Group's and
Company's exposure {o interest rates on its vanable rate homowings

(f) Credit nsk management

Credit nsk refers to the nsk that a counterparty will default on its contractual cbhigations resulting in financial loss to the Group and
Company The Group and Company have adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating
the nsk of financial loss from defaults The Group and Company only transact with entities that have a good credit rating The Group
and Company uses publicly avallable financial nformation and ts own trading records to rate ds major customers The Group’s and
Company's exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are contmuously monitored ardd controfled by the Treasury
departiment

As the pnncipal business of the Group and Company 1s retal related, trade recetvables consist of a relatively small number of
customers, although spread across diverse busmass sectors Ongoing credit evaluation 1s performed on the financial condition of
accounis recevable

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the Financial statements represents the Group's and Company's maximum
exposure to credit nsk
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39 Financial instruments (continued)

{g) Liguidity nsk management

Ultimate responsibility for hqundity nsk management rests with the Board of Directors The Group and Company manages iquidity nsk
by mantaining adequate reserves and banking faciities and by continuously monitonng forecasts and actual cash flows Included n
note 23 of these Notes to the Financial statemants 18 a descnphon of additional undrawn facities that the Group and Company had
ai s disposal at 27 January 2008 and 28 January 2007

The followsing table details the Group's and Company's remaring contractual matunty of its non-dervative financial habilibes The table
has been drawn up based on the undscounted cash flows of financial labiites based on the earliest date on which the Group and
Company can be required to pay the hability The table includes both interest and pnancipal cash flows The interest rates used in
respect of the bank loans has been basad on 45 bps above LIBOR at 27 January 2008, the weighted average interest rate for the
52 weeks 1o 27 January 2008 (2007 28 January 2007) has been used to calculate the interest on the loan notes

Group

Less than Greater than
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5years Total
27 January 2008 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade and other payables 110,874 - - - 110,874
Loan noles 176,792 - - - 176,792
Bank loans - 8,865 56,209 - 65,074
287,666 8,865 56,209 - 352,740

Group

Lass than Greater than
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years § years Total
28 January 2007 £'000 £000 £°000 £'00Q £'000
Trade and other payables 112,827 - - - 112,927
Forward foreign exchange contracts 34,486 - - - 34,486
Loan notes 175,380 - - - 175,380
Bank loans - 6,907 34,683 1,917 43,507
322,793 6,907 34,683 1,917 366,300

Company

Less than Greater than
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years Total
27 January 2008 £'000 £'000 £7000 £000 £'000
Trade and other payables 283,692 - - - 283,692
Loan notes 176,792 - - - 176,792
Bank loans - 8,865 56,209 - 65,074
460,484 8,865 56,209 - 525,558

Company

Less than Greater than
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years Total
28 January 2007 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade and other payables 262,332 - - - 262,332
Forward foreign exchange contracts 34,486 - - - 34,486
Loan notes 175,380 - - - 175,380
Bank loans - 6,907 34,683 1,917 43,507
472,198 6,907 34,683 1,917 515,705

The pnncipal armount of the loan notes 1s secured by an identical amount held In a bank account, see note 20 of these Notes to the
Financial statements
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39

41

Financial instruments {continued)
(h) Farr values

The far values of the Group’s and Company's trade recevables, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables and provisions are
assurmed to approximate to therr book value

The farr value of the foreign currency transactions are determined as follows

[ 3 Foreign currency forward contracts are measured using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves denved from quoted
interest rates matching matunties of the contracts

[} Foreign currency options are measured using quoted forward exchange rates, yield curves denved from quoted injerest rates
matching matunties of the contracts and foreign currency volatilities denved from quoted pnces for similar foreign currency
ophons

Retirement benefit schemes
Defined contnbution schemes

The Group contnbutes to the personal pension schemes and stakeholder schemes of certan Executve Directors and senior
executives The contnbutions made by the Group are equal to the amounts contributed by the Directors and senior executives
thermselves and are imited to a fixed percentage of ther basic salary

The total cost charged to the Consolidated income statement for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 was £334,000 (2007 £183,000)

Related party transactions
{a) Transactions with related partes who are not members of the Group
The Group and Company have entered into the following transactions with related parties who are not members of the Group

Income from
related parties

Expenditure with
related parties

S2weeksto 52weeksto 5S52weeksto 52 weeksto

27 January 28 January 27 January 28 January

2008 2007 2008 2007

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Whelco Holdings Limited 132 267 351 795
Former Executve Director’s family trust - - 50 150
E-View Properties Limited - 504 - -
KooGa Rugby Lirmited 182 - 1,680 -
Source Lab Limted - - 486 -

Amounts owed by Amounts owed to

related parties related parties
27 January 28 January 27 January 28 January
2008 2007 2008 2007
£'000 £7000 £'000 £'000
Whelco Holdings Limited - 137 - 176
KooGa Rugby Limited
- Loan 4,000 - - -
- Trade recevables/payables 1,156 - 1,786 -
Source Lab Umited - - 208 -
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a1 Related party transactons (continued)
{a} Transachons with related partes who are not members of the Group (continued)

in addition, remuneration has been paid to Directors and key managament personnel as set out in the Directors’ remuneration report
on page 34 of the Annual report and in note 6 ¢ of these Notes to the Financial statements

Whelco Holdings Limrted, E-View Properties Urmited and the Executve Director's family trust are all entites in which David Whelan, a
former Executive Director of the Company, had an interest Dawvid Whelan, his immediate family and related trusts, disposed of ther
entire shareholdings in the Company on 8 June 2007 at which date they ceased to be a related party

. Whelco Holdings Limited i a company owned by members of the family of Dand Whelan, operating tself or through its
subsidianes, a nurmber of businesses including that of Wigan Athletic Football Club (WAFC), Wigan Wamors Rugby League
Club (WWRLC) and the stadium in which both teams play which 1s known as the “JJB Stadium”

. The Group incurred expendiure in its capacity of sponsors to WAFC and WWRLC and incurred costs in respect of the
naming nghts for the JUB Stadium Achvice was taken from independent third parties as to the comparative levels of the costs
of sponsorship and naming nghts at other clubs and stadia, pnor to the agreement of the amounts to be pad

. The Group made sales to Whelco Holdings Limited and ts subsidiary comparues in respect of both foothalt and rugby related
products
. A store in Northampton had previously been leased by JJB from a third party for a number of years and was operated as a

retal store untd October 1998 The freehold of the store was subsequently acquired from the third party by the Trustees of
an Executive Director's Accumutation and Maintenance Settlement, (a Settlement in which some members of the famuly of
Dawnd Whelan, had an interest) Following the opening of the new retall store n August 2003, the Group continued to pay
rent on a full commercial basis at the rate of £150,000 per annum

L] Dunng the 52 weeks to 28 January 2007, JJB sold 3 acres of a 10 acre site adjacent to its head office and distnbution centre
to E-View Propertias Ltd The sale pnce of £504,000 was based upon an assessment of land value in the area by an external
property consuftant and resulted in a profit on disposal of £82,000 which was credited to the Consolidated income statement
in the 52 weeks to 28 January 2007

. Following the disposal of his shareholdings in the Company, Dawd Whelan acquired the Vizwear Garments business, an
ntangble asset of the Group, at an arms length valuation of £153,000

‘The Group made purchases from Source Lab Limiled, a company of which a Director 15 the brother af the Chief Executive of JUB
Sports Plc

The Company acquired 48 per cent of the 1ssued share capital of KooGa Rugby Lmited {*KooGa™) on 14 June 2007 (see note 17 of
these Notes to the Financial Statements) Purchases were made by the Company from KooGa at arms length pnces Incorme
represents interest which 1s payabfe to the Company on a loan made to Koo(Ga at a rate eguivalent to that charged on the Company's
revolving bank credit facility The net amount of trade recewvables/payables 1s unsecured and will be settled in cash No guarantees
have been given Durning the perod 14 June 2007 to 27 January 2008, the Combany has advanced a loan of £4 million to KooGa
Repayments of the loan are to be based upon the profit after taxaton of KooGa

{b) Transactrons with related parties whe are members of the Group

The Company entered into the followang transactions with related parties who are members of the Group

Durnng the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008, the Company has supplied product for resale to Blane Leisure LUmited of £87,568,000
(2007 £98,193,000), to Sports Dmsion (Breann) Limited of £7,444,000 {2007 £7.809,000) and to TV Sports Shop Ltd of
£1,306,000 {2007 £nil) In addiion, the Company receved a management charge from Blane Leisure Umited of £3,000,000 {2007
£3,750,000) and from Sports Dmsion (Erreann) Lirnited of £104,000 (2007 £89,000) These balances are settled through inter-
company accounts
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41 Related party transactions {continued)

{b) Transactions with related parties who are members of the Group (continued)
As at 27 January 2008, the Company had the following balances outstanding with related parties

Amounts owed by Amounts owed to
subsidiary undertakings subsidiary undertakings
27 January 28 January 27 January 28 January

2008 2007 2008 2007
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Blane Leisure Limited - - 160,506 138,884
Sports Dmsion (Ereann) Lmited - 1,657 2,228 -
TV Spaorts Shop Limited 2,327 1,581 - -
Dormant subsidiaries 4,152 4,152 290,444 29,435
6,479 7.290 192,178 168,319

42, Events after the balance sheet date

Final dividend

The Board has proposed a final dmdend of 7 0 pence net per ordinary share (2007 7 0 pence} In accordance with 1AS 10, the
proposed dvdend has not been included as a hability in the Consolidated balance sheet at 27 January 2008 Subject to shareholders
approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, this dwdend will be pad on B August 2008 to shareholders on the register at
11 July 2008

Onginal Shoe Company

On 18 December 2007, the Company agreed to acquire the whole of the 1ssued share caprtal of tha Ongmnal Shoe Company (*OSC7)
from Sports Direct International Plc with effect from 28 January 2008 for a cash consideration of £5 million OSC trades from 60 stores
which are predominately situated n the north of England and Scotland

0OSC sells a range of branded lifestyle clothing and footwear Its premium clothing brands include Ben Shenman, Henn toyd, adidas
Onginals, Timberland and Jack & Jones Its footwear ranges include leisure brands such as Caterpiltar, Converse, Timberland and
Henn Lioyd together with ranges from Nke and adidas

Sale of UK indoor soccer centres

On 26 February 2008, the Company announced the sale of its § UK indoor soccer centres to a subsidiary of Powereague Group plc
{*Powerleague”) for a cash consideration of £17 4 miion

The Company will retain ownership of the leasehold sites and continue trading from the attached retal stores and fitness clubs
Powerleague will lease the indoor soccer centres and their wet sales facilities from the Company

Available-for-sale mvestment

On 18 October 2007, the Company announced the purchase of 10 12 per cent of the 1ssued share capital of Umbro Plc {(“Umbro™)
These shares were not held for trading and accordingly werse classified as an *avalable-for-sale investment” in ts Consolidated
balance sheet at 27 January 2008, see note 20 of these Notes to the Financial statements

On 23 October 2007, the Boards of Umbro and Nike Vapour Ltd (*Nike”) announced they had reached agreement on terms for a
recommended cash acquisition to be made by Nike for the entire 1ssued and to be issued share capital of Umbro, such acquisittion
to be effected by means of a Scheme of Arangement under section 425 of the Companies Act 1985 and section 899 of the
Companias Act 2008

On 29 February 2008, the Company announced that ¢ had entered into an wrevocable undertaking with Nike to vote s interest in
the shares of Umbro in favour of the Scheme of Arrangement

On 3 March 2008, Umbro announced that the Scheme of Arrangement had become effective and on 17 March 2008, the Company
recenved the proceeds from the sale of its sharsholding i Umbro for £28,534,000, which compares to its carrying value at 27 January
2008 of £28,100,000
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Five year summary

For the accounting periods ending January

Group trading results

Revenue
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Cost of sales

Gross profit
Net operating expenses

Operating profit

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Operating profit 1s stated after {charging)
crediting the following

Goodwill amortisation

Losses on closure of certan flagship stores
and the subsequent disposal of the leases
to those stores

Legal costs incurred on the abortve
management buy-out of the Group

Provision for restructunng of retail store chan
Increase in provisions relating to lega! penalty
and interest thereon

Release of legal cost accrual

Charges relating to the closure of Icon stores
Net gam {loss) on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Total
Loss on disposal of subsidiary undertaking
Investment revenue

Finance costs
Share of results of associated undertaking

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit after taxation

JJB Sports plc

Under Under

iIFRS UK GAAP

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
811,754 810,287 745,238 773,339 771,772
- - - - 158,040
811,754 810,287 745,238 773,339 929,812
(405,642) {425,314) {393,075) (402,082) (504,665)
406,112 384,973 352,163 371,257 425,147
(394,817} {345,852) {317,814) (309,151) (353,825)
11,295 39,021 34,349 62,106 71,322
11,295 39,021 34,349 62,106 69,148
- - - - 2,174

- - - - (13,102)

- - - - (5,272)

- - - - (805)
{24,970) - - - -
- (4,063) (1.882) {2.000) -

- - - 2,000 -

- (3.343) - - -

1,996 (1,317) 2917 (835) -
(22,974) 8,723) 1,035 (835) {19,179)
- - - - (852)
11,551 9,437 8,896 9,036 7,149
{12,442) [9,965) (9,498) (8,692) (9,781)
396 - - - -
10,800 38,493 33,747 62,450 67,838
{1,170) {12,668) {3.510) {17,287) {22,376)
9,630 25,825 30,237 45,163 45,462
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Under Under
IFRS UK GAAP
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Consolidated balance sheet £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000
Non-current assets
Goodwill 187,834 188,459 186,084 186,114 186,347
Other intangible assets 25417 27,397 10,191 - -
Property, plant and equipment 198,272 198,880 189,222 165,175 155,791
investment in associated undertaking 1,677 - - - -
Loan to associated undertaking 4,000 - - - -
417,200 414,836 385,497 351,289 342,138
Current assets 372,348 357,970 361,981 345,951 391 301
Current liabilities (301,647) (300,028} (270,855) (296,072) (271,465)
Net current agsets 70,701 57,942 91,326 48,879 119,836
Non-current abiities {122.846) {85,752) {112,230) {43,780) {108,971)
Net assets 365,055 377,026 364,593 357,388 353,003
Financed by
Share caprtal 11,944 11,892 11,538 11,538 11,899
Share premium account 171,248 169,334 157,219 157,219 157,129
Capntal redemption reserve 1,069 1,069 1,069 1,069 706
Investment in own shares {3,083) {3 083} - - -
Share based payment reserve 680 297 - - -
Foreign cumrency translation reserve {1,211) 187 24 (21) -
Retaned earnings 184,408 197,330 194,743 187,583 183,269
Equity shareholders' funds 365,055 377,026 364,593 357,388 353,003
Key statistics
Tota! dwvidends paid or proposed 10 00p 10 00p 10 00p 10 00p 10 00p
Basic earnings per orcnary share 407p 11 07p 1310p 19 54p 18 27p
Diluted earnings per ordinary share 407p 11 07p 13 10p 19 51p 19 23p

The amounts disciosed for 2004 are stated on the basis of UK GAAP because it 1s not practicable to restate amounts in the IFRS format for
penods pnor to the date of transition to IFRS

Key performance mdicators

Change in ike-for-like revenue +0 2% +7 5% -43% -12%
Gross margin 50 0% 47 5% 47 3% 48 0%
Adusted basic earnings per ordinary share 10 89p 14 21p 12 79p 1979p
Net debt/{funds) (£'000) 42,156 9,246 25,025 (4,373
Retall sefing space at penod end ('000sq ft) 4,348 4295 4,398 4,234 4,184
Number of fitness clubs at period end 49 39 32 21 16
Number of fitness club members at penod end 205,800 174,700 136,800 88,400 67,300

Some key performance indicators for the 52 weeks to 25 January 2004 have been omitted because the results included those from
discontinued operations
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JJUB Sports plc

JJB Sports plc
{Registered in England and Wales No  1024895)

Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice ts hereby given that the 2008 Annual General Meeting of the Company will ba held at the head office of JJB Sports pic at Martland
Park, Challenge Way, Wigan, WNS OLD on Thursday 24 July 2008 at 12 noon for the following purposes

Ordinary Business

1 To receve the Annual report and the Financial statements for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008 and the Auditors' report thereon

2 To receve and approve the Directors’ remuneraton repart, which includes the remuneraton policy for the Executve Directors, as
set out in the Annual report and Financial statements for the 52 weeks to 27 January 2008

3 To declars a final dvidend in respect of the 52 weeks 1o 27 January 2008 of 7 pence net per ordinary share of 5 penca in the capnal
of the Compary, payable on 8 August 2008 to shaseholders on the register of members at the close of business on 11 July 2008

4 To re-appoint Deloitte & Touche LLP of 2 Hardman Street, Manchester, MB0 2AT as auditors for the ensuing accounting penod
and to authonse the Directors to determine thewr remuneration

5 To re-elect as a Dwector, Reger Lane-Smith who retires by rotation

B To re-elect as a Director, Bary Dunn who retires by rotation

7 To re-elect as a Director, Dawvid Beever who retires by rotation

To elect as a Direcior, Alan Benzie who has been appointed by the Board of Directors since the last Annual General Meeting
g To elect as a Dector, Dawd Jones who has been appointed by the Board of Directors since the last Annual General Mesting
10 To elect as a Director, David Madeley who has been appointed by the Board of Directors since the last Annual General Meeting

Special Business

To consider, and if thought fit, pass the following resolutions which will be proposed as an ordinary resolution in the case of resolubion 11 and
as a special resolution in the case of resolution 12

11 That In substitution for all other authonties under that section, the Directors be generally and unconditonally authonsed pursuant
to section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 (“*Act”) to exercise all the powers of the Company o allot relevant secunties {as defined
in section 80(2) of the Act) of the Company up to a maximum nemmnal amount of £3,981,418 duning the perniod commencing on
the date of the passing of this resolution and expiring {unless previously rengwed, vaned or revoked by the Company In general
mesting} fifteen months from the date of the passing of thes resolution or, if earlier, on the conclusan of the next Annual Generat
Meeting of the Company, save that the Company may make an offer or agreement before the expiry of this authonty wivch would
or might require relevant secunties to be allotted after such expiry and the Directors may allot relevant secunties pursuant to such
an offer or agreement as if the authonty hereby conferred had not exprred

12 That in substitution for all other existing powers under that secton and subject to the passing of resolution 11, the Directors be
generally empowered pursuant to section 95 of the Companies Act 1985 (“Act™) 10 allot equity secunties (as defined in section 94(2)
of the Act) of the Company pursuant to the authonty conferred by resolution 11, as if section 89(1) of the Act did not apply to such
allotment, save that such power shall be limited to

121 allotments of equity secunties where such secunties have been offered (whether by way of a nghts issue, open offer or
otherwise) to holders of ordinary shares of 5 pence each in the capital of the Company n proportion {as nearly as
practicableg} o thew existing holdings of ordinary shares of 5 pence each, but subject to the Directors having a nght to
make such exclusions or other arrangements i connection with the offer as they deem necessary or expedient to deal
with

1211 equity secunties representing fractional enttlements, and

1212  legal or practical problems under the laws of, or the requirements of any regulatory body or any stock
exchange in any temitory, and

22 allotments of equity secunties for cash {otherwise than pursuant to paragraph 12 1) up to a maximum aggregats nomenal
value of £597,218,
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

Special Business (continued)

and {unless previously renewed, vaned or revoked by the Company in general meeting) such power shall expire fifteen months from
the date of the passing of this resolution or If earlier, on the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company, save
that the Company may make an offer or agreement before the expiry of this power which would or might require equity secunties
to be allotted after the expary of this power and the Drectors may allot equiy secunties pursuant to such offer or agresment as
the power hereby conferred had not expired

By order of the Board

JD Greenwood
Company Secretary

23 May 2008

Notes

(1) A form of proxy 18 enclosed with this Notice To be valid, the form of proxy (together with any power of attornay or other authonty (if any) under which
it 15 signed or a notanally certified copy of such power or authonty} must be completed signed and sent to the office of the Company's regestrars
Caprta Registrars, The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU so as to amve not later than 12 noon on Tuesday 22 July 2008
(or, n the event that the meeting 1s adiourned, no later than 48 hours before the ime of any adiournad meeting)

2) A member 1s entritled to appoint one or more persons as roxies 10 exercise all or any of his nghts to attend, speak and vote at the meeting A proxy
need not be a member of the Company A member may appoint more than one proxy In relation to the meeting provided that each proxy 1s appointed
to exercise the nghts attached to a different share or shares held by him To appont rore than one proxy, you will need to complete a separate proxy
form 0 relation to each appointment Addional proxy forms may be obtained by contacting the Company's registrar on 08716 640300 (calls cost
10p per minute plus network charges) or you may photocopy the proxy form You will need to state clearly on each proxy form the number of shares
in relation to which the proxy 1s appointed A fatlure 10 specify the number of shares each proxy appointment relates to or specifyng a number n
excass of thass held hy the membar may result m the proxy appointment beng mvald You can only appont 2 proxy using the procedures set out
in these notes and the notes to the proxy form The nght of a member under section 325 of the Companies Act 2006 (*2006 Act™) to appoint a proxy
does not apply to a person nomnated 16 enjoy nformation nghts under secton 146 of the 2006 Act The appointment of a proxy will not preclude a
member from atiending and voling in person at the meeting f he or she s¢ wishes

(3 Only these Shareholders registered n the regrster of members of the Company as at 6 prm on Tuesday 22 July 2008 or, in the event that the meeting
15 adjourned In the register of members 48 hours before the time of any adjoumed meetings, shall be enttled to attend or vote at the Annual General
Mesting N respect of the number of ordinary shares ¢f 5 pence sach registered in therr name &t that tme Changes to entnes m the register of
members of the Company after 6 pm on Tuesday 22 July 2008 or in the avent that the meeting 15 adiourned 48 hours before the time of the
adiourned meeting, wilt be disregarded in deterrining the nghts of any persen o aftend or vota at the Annual General Maeting

(4) Where a copy of this notice s being receved by a person who has been nominated to enjoy information nghts under section 146 of the 2006 Act
(“nominge”)

{a) the nominee may have a nght under an agreement between the nommes and the member by whom he was appointed to be appointed,
or 1o have someone else appointed, as a proxy for the meeting or

[18)] i the nominee does not have any such nght or does not wish to exaercise such nght the nominee may have a mght under any such
agresment to grve Instructions to the member as to the exercise of voting nghts

&) Biographical details of all thase Diractors who are offerng themsedves for re-election at the meeting are set cut on pages 1010 11 of the Annual report
and Financial statermnents

5] Copies of the service contracts or letters of appontment between the Company and its Directors 15 avallable for inspecthon at the regqistered office of
the Company dunng usual business hours on Mondays to Fndays (except public holidays) from the date of this Notice unil the date of the meetng
and will be avatlable for nspection at the place of the meeting for fiflsen rminutes pror to the Meeting and at the mesting

@) Dbadend warrants in respect of the proposed Final Dradend, o appraved, will be posted on 7 August 2008
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JJUB Sports plc

Financial calendar

Prefiminary results announced

16 Apnl 2008

Intenm management statement published

20 May 2008

Annual report and Financial statements
published

23 May 2008

Final dmdend record date

11 July 2008

Annual General Mesting
24 July 2008

Final dmdend payable

8 August 2008

Intenm resutts published

September 2008

Intenm management statement published

November 2008

End of cumrent accounting penod

25 January 2009

Preliminary results published

Apnl 2009

Annual report and Financial statements
published

May 2009
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JJB Sports plc

Retail store and fitness club locations

The locations of retail stores and fitness clubs as at 27 January 2008 are set out below Full address details of our retail stores and fitness
clubs can be found using our site-locator facility avalable on our websites www jbsports com and www bfitness co uk

Fitness cluba Republic of Irefand North West West Midlands East Anglia South East
43 sites 5 gtores 87 stores 37 stores 9 stores 77 stores
Aberdeen Blanchardstown Accnngton Banbury Bury 5t Edmunds Ashiond
Bangor Dublin Liffey Valey Altnncham Felixstowe Ayleshury
Bamnsley Dundatk Ashton-under Lyne Brieday Hil Great Yarmouth Basingstoke
Bedfast Limenck Baguley Coventry lpswach Backton
Blackbum Tallaght Birkenhead Dudley Kings Lynn Bedford
Bolton Blackburn Harley Norwich Bexley Heath
Bnstol Blackpoot Hereford Borehamwood
Bromborough Scotland Botton Kiddermnster Bouremouth
Burton-upon-Trent 58 stores Bootle Learmington Spa South West Brackne
Bury Aberdesn Bromborough Nuneaton 27 stores Bnghton
Coattindge furcino Burey Ooury Bamstapie Qamberey
Dertry ry
Durdak i — Chesture Oaks Augby S Canterbury
Durdee Ciydebank Chester Shrewsbury Chaltanham Chartion
Gansbomugh Coatbndge Chorley Smathwick Cowley Chatham
Glasgow Cumbermautd Crewe Sobhwl Dorchester Chelmsford
Gloucester Cumtnes Eccles Stafford Exater Colchester
Hahfax Dundee Ellesmere Port Statchford Gloucsster Colliers Wood
Hull Durfermine Lancaster Stratford upon-Avon Oxdorg Crawley
Irverness Eastorhouse Lengh Tarnworth Pymouth Croydon
Kidderrmunster East Kibnde Liverpool Tedford Poole Dover
Leeds Edinburgh Macclesfield Walsall Sashury Dunstable
Legh Elgn Manchester West Bromwich Swindon Ealing
Limenck Falkirk Oldham Wolverhampton Taunton Eastbourne
Uanell Clasgow Prescot Worcester Torcuay Edgeware
Londondarry Glenvothes Praston Truro Eltham
Macclesfield Groenock Rochdale Yoo Enfieid
Mansfield Hamiton Runcorn East Midlands Epsom
Merthyr TycHil Ivermess Satford 24 stores Fareharm
Muddiesbrough Ivine Sketmersdale Boston Famborough
Newton Abbey Southporn Fnem Bamet
Newcastle upon Tyne ﬂkmldy’ amock St Helens wﬁﬂ"d' Trent Gilingham
Newport Stockport Gravesend
Northampton Mw Walkden DOggy Gurldford
North Shields Wallasey Harlow
Cigham ng':w Warmngton ginnsmmh Hastings
Selby String Widres Lescester Hayes
Southport Wishaw Wigan Lincoin Heme Hempstead
St Helens Winsford Loughborough fford
Swindon Wortangton Mansfieid Kingston
Tetford CumbnafNorth East Northampton London Staples Cormar
Trafiord 22 stores Yorkshiro mham h Maidstone
Warnngton Bcgd";w'""':m 37 stores a9 Miton Keynies
Widnes e Bamsiey Newbury
Wigan Dadington Bradtord Wales Orpinggton
winsford Curham Crystal Peaks 23 stores Portsmouth
Gateshead Dgsvsm Readng
Hartlepool Doty Bangor Romord
Northern Iretand Kendal Gnmsby Bndgend Shepherds Bush
23 stores Middiesbrough Halitax Caerphity Sidcup
Antnm Newcastie upon Tyna Harrogats Cardiff Slough
Ballymena North Shuoids Huddarsfietd Carmarihien Southampton
South Shields Gwmbran Southend
g;'gs:“ Stockton E;ZH Haverfordwest Stanes
Colerane Sundertand &Y tandudno Stevenage
S vosnogen o e s
Lisburn Scarborough Mermwnsa'rl"ydm chm
Londonderry Scunthorpe N rt
Newry Setoy lewpol Uxbricige
Newtownabbey Sheffield Aim Walthamstow
Newtowrards Wakaficid Swansea Waterlooulle
Wrexham Watford
oradown York Wetwyn Garden Crty
Waest Thurrock
Winchester
Woking
Worthing
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